
i

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX

Telephone: 023 9247 4174
Fax: 023 9248 0263
Website: www.havant.gov.uk

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA

Membership:      Councillor Smith D (Chairman)

Councillors Bains, Cresswell, Francis, Gibb-Gray, Hughes, Kerrin, Pierce Jones, 
Pike, Ponsonby, Sceal, Shimbart, Howard (Vice-Chairman) and Wade

Meeting: Licensing Committee

Date: Wednesday 13 January 2016

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: Hollybank Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, 
Havant, Hants PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

5 January 2016

Contact Officer: Mark Gregory (023) 9244 6232
Email:  mark.gregory@havant.gov.uk

Page
PART 1 (Items open for public attendance)

1 Apologies  

To receive apologies for absence. 

2 Minutes  

To approve the minutes of the Licensing Committee held on 16 
September 2015. 

1 - 4

3 Matters Arising  

4 Declarations of Interests  

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


ii

To receive and record any declarations of interests from members 
present in respect of any of the various matters on the agenda for this 
meeting.
 

5 Chairman's Report  

The Chairman to report the outcome of meetings attended or other 
information arising since the last meeting. 

6 Proposed  Changes to the Current Licensing Act 2003 Policy  5 - 40

7 Proposed Changes to the Current Policy and  Vehicle 
specification for Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles  

41 - 62

8 Proposed Changes to the Current Policy to Include a Restriction 
on the Licensing  for Hackney Carriages and Private Operators 
based outside of the Havant Borough Council Boundary  

63 - 70

9 Exclusion of the Press and Public  

The Committee is asked to consider whether to pass a resolution 
excluding the public from the meeting during consideration of any of 
the items on the agenda.  If members wish to do so then this could 
be achieved by passing the following resolution.  Members are not 
required to pass the resolution but the Solicitor to the Council 
recommends this as to the item set out below.

That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the item headed and numbered as below because:

it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
during that item there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information of the descriptions specified in paragraphs of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 1972 
shown against the heading in question; and

in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

Item  7   Application for a Private Hire Operators Licence.
(Paragraphs 1 to 3)

Paragraph 1  Information relating to any individual

Paragraph 2  Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual

Paragraph 3  Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the 



iii

authority holding that information) 

10 Application for a Private Hire Operators Licence  71 - 90

PART 2 ( Confidential Items)

NONE



iv

 GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231
Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and 
observe the meetings. Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to 
make deputations on matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this 
procedure and for further information please get in touch with the contact 
officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO

No Smoking Policy

The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its 
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets. 

Parking

Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park 
opposite the Plaza.

http://www.havant.gov.uk/


v

Public 
Service 
Plaza





5
 LICENSING COMMITTEE

16 September 2015

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 16 September 2015

Present 

Councillor Smith D (Chairman)

Councillors Bains, Cresswell, Edwards, Francis, Gibb-Gray, Hughes, Kerrin, Pike, 
Ponsonby, Sceal, Shimbart and Wade

11 Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Pierce Jones and 
Tarrant.

12 Minutes 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Licensing Committee held on 17 June 2015 
be approved as a correct record.

13 Matters Arising 

There were no matters arising.

14 Exclusion of Press and Public 

RESOLVED that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the minutes headed and numbered as below because:

it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature 
of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present during those 
minutes there would be disclosure to them of exempt information of the 
descriptions specified in paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 shown against the heading in question; and

in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Minute 21 Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Licence
(Paragraphs 1 to 3)

All parties agreed to the Licensing Support Officer remaining in the meeting 
after the public had been excluded.

15 Declarations of Interests 



6
 LICENSING COMMITTEE

16 September 2015

Cllr Shimbart advised that he had spoken to the complainant in the past on 
matters not connected with Item 11 but this would not affect his impartiality.

Cllr Ponsonby advised that she was acquainted with one of the taxi drivers 
referenced in Item 11 but this would not influence her view on this matter.

16 Chairman's Report 

The Chairman reminded the Committee that a licensing training session was 
scheduled for 7 October 2015 and advised members to send apologies if they 
were unable to attend.

17 Adoption of Revised Deputation Procedure 

The Committee considered a report setting out revisions to its deputation 
procedure. The revisions were proposed in order to improve areas of the 
procedure where the Committee was restricted in asking questions of 
deputees.

RESOLVED that the revised deputation procedure be approved.

18 Charges for Combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Driver 
Licensing 

The Committee considered a report from the Licensing Officer requesting 
consideration of the charges for Combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Vehicle Driver Licences from 1 October 2015 to 31 March 2017 as a result of 
the Deregulation Act 2015.

The Committee requested that the second and third column headings on page 
16 of the agenda be amended to read:

“Approved Prices 2015/2016” and “Proposed Prices 2016/2017”.

RESOLVED that the charges as shown in Appendix A of the report be 
approved.

19 Charges for Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licensing 

The Committee received a report from the Licensing Officer setting out 
proposed charges for Private Hire Vehicle Operator licences from 1 October 
2015 to 31 March 2017. Due to the Deregulation Act 2015 commencing on 1 
October 2015 Private Hire Vehicle operator licences were to be issued for a five 
year period.

RESOLVED that 

(1) The charges be approved for consultation;

(2) The necessary advertisement be placed; and



7

Licensing Committee (16.9.15)

(3) In the event that no representations were received in response to the 
consultation, the new charges be recommended at Full Council for 
implementation.

20 Charges for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing 

The Committee considered a report from the Licensing Officer requesting 
consideration of the charges for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing for the financial 
year 2016/2017.

RESOLVED that 

(1) The charges be approved for consultation;

(2) The necessary advertisement be placed; and

(3) In the event that no representations were received in response to the 
consultation, the new charges be recommended at Full Council and be 
implemented for the financial year commencing 1 April 2016.

21 Consideration of a Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Licence 

(this minute was taken in camera)

The Committee was requested to consider whether the licensed driver MA
continued to be a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence.

The relevant legislation stated that a district council shall not grant a licence 
“unless they are satisfied that the Applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a 
driver’s licence”.

There was no statutory definition of “fit and proper person” but case law
suggested that the issue of whether an applicant was a fit and proper person 
should be approached by proper consideration of the objectives of the licensing 
regime. These objectives were intended to ensure that, so far as possible, 
those licensed to drive private hire vehicles were:

• safe drivers with good driving records and
• adequately experienced and
• sober and
• mentally and physically fit and
• honest and
• not persons who would take advantage of their employment to abuse or
assault passengers and
• not persons who would take advantage of their employment to engage in
criminal activity.

The Committee was advised of its powers under Section 61 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.



8
 LICENSING COMMITTEE

16 September 2015

The Chairman outlined the Committee’s procedure for dealing with the possible 
revocation of a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire driver’s licence.

The Licensing Officer presented her confidential report to the Committee.

Driver MA was given an opportunity to address the Committee in support of his 
case and answered members’ questions.

The driver and the licensing officers left the meeting during consideration of the 
application and were invited back into the meeting to receive the Committee’s 
decision.

RESOLVED that one penalty point be awarded to driver MA’s Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Licence having regard to the incident reported.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 6.34 pm



HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Committee 13 January 2016

Proposed  Changes to the Current Licensing Act 2003 Policy 

Report of the Licensing Officer

Key Decision: No

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the views of the Licensing Committee with 
regard to the Council’s draft statement of Licensing Policy 2015, prior to its 
submission to Full Council for approval.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Committee approves the Statement of Licensing Policy and, if no objections or 
comments received during the 28 day consultation, recommends the Statement of 
Licensing Policy be submitted to Full Council for approval.

3.0 SUMMARY

3.1 The Licensing Act 2003 requires Havant Borough Council (as the licensing authority)
to publish its statement of licensing policy every five years (formally three years).  
The policy must be published before the authority can carry out its licensing 
functions.  When drafting the policy, the Council is required to consult certain 
persons and groups of persons in the area, namely;

a) The Chief Officer of Police for the area
b) The Fire and Rescue authority for the area
c) Persons / bodies representative of local holders of premises licences or 

club premises certificate
d) Persons / bodies representative of local holders of personal licences
e) Persons / bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area
f) Any other bodies the Licensing Authority deems appropriate.

3.2 The Statement of Licensing Policy will be issued by Havant Borough Council to the 
organisations covering the groups of persons for consultation. The draft policy will 
also placed be onto the Havant Borough Council website and the ‘Pubwatch’ 
website for all licensee’s to view.

3.3 The new policy is similar to the previous policy but has been updated to take 
account of legislative changes and guidance issued by the Home Office.



3.4 Should any representations be received during the 28 day consultation period, the 
draft policy be amended where appropriate and brought to the Licensing Committee.

3 IMPLICATIONS

Financial

4.1 None arising directly from this item

Legal

4.2 As set out in paragraph 3.1 above

Strategy (Community and Corporate)

4.3      None arising directly from this item

Equalities/Customers

4.4 None arising directly from this item

Risk

4.5 None arising directly from this item

Communications/Public Relations

4.6 As set out in paragraphs 3.2 and 3.4 above

Appendices:

Appendix A - Havant Borough Council – Licensing Act 2003 – Statement of Licensing
                      Policy – January 2015

Background papers:

Nil

Agreed and Signed off by Legal Services:

Contact Officer: Hilary Smith
Licensing Officer
Tel: 023 9244 6653
Email: hilary.smith@havant.gov.uk



1

LICENSING ACT 2003

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING POLICY 2016

APPENDIX A



2

CONTENTS

Page

1. INTRODUCTION 3

2. LICENSING OBJECTIVES 5

3. INTEGRATION OF INITIATIVES INTO WIDER INITIATIVES 5

4. DETERMINATION OF LICENSING APPLICATIONS 6

5. TYPES OF LICENCES, CERTIFICATES AND NOTICES 7

106. CUMULATIVE EFFECT AND SPECIAL SATURATION POLICIES  

7.  LATE NIGHT LEVY AND EARLY MORNING RESTRICTION    
ORDERS

12

8. REPRESENTATIONS, REVIEWS AND APPEALS 13

9. ENFORCEMENT 14

10. OFFENCES 15

11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES 15

12. DATA PROTECTION 15

13. OPERATING SCHEDULES

 Prevention of Crime and Disorder

 Public Safety

 Prevention of Public Nuisance

 Protection of Children from Harm

16

16

17

18

22

APPENDIX 1 – Schedule of Delegations 25
APPENDIX 2 – List of Responsible Authorities 27



3

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING ACT 2003
SECTION 5 
Statement of Licensing Policy
2016 - 2021

This document sets out the Council (“the Licensing Authority”) Licensing 
Policy in respect of its licensing functions for the next five years commencing 
in 2016. During the five year period the policy will be kept under review and 
revised when appropriate. Further licensing policy statements will be 
published every five years thereafter.

The Licensing Act 2003 (“The Act”) introduces a requirement for all local authorities 
to set out their policy in respect of licences for the sale of alcohol, the provision of 
entertainment and the provision of late night refreshment. This Statement of 
Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Act and 
the official Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act.

Where any amendments are considered necessary, these will be made after 
consultation has taken place in accordance with Section 5(3) of the Act.  Proper 
weight will be given to the views of all those consulted. Those to be consulted may 
include:

 The Chief Officer of Police for Hampshire

 The Chief Officer of Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service

 Bodies representing local holders of premises licences and club premises 
certificates

 Bodies representing local holders of personal licences

 Bodies representing businesses and residents in the Licensing Authority’s 
area

 Any other bodies the Licensing Authority deems appropriate

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Havant Borough is just over 30 square miles and serves a population of 
around 120,000 people.  

1.2 The Havant Borough has many and varied licensed premises. The Licensing 
Authority recognises that these premises play a vital part in the cultural 
identity of the area and are important contributors to the local economy. The 
premises attract tourists and visitors and make for vibrant towns and 
communities, while at the same time providing employment.

1.3      There are approximately 328 licensed premises in the Borough where alcohol 
is sold or entertainment provided on a regular or occasional basis.  These 
premises include: 

 public houses

 off-licences



4

 businesses offering hot food between 2300 - 0500hrs

 hotels, guest houses, restaurants and other places that sell alcohol

 private members clubs and social clubs

 theatres and amateur dramatic groups

 cinemas

 premises where indoor sporting events take place

1.4 Havant Borough Council is the “Licensing Authority" as defined under the 
Licensing Act 2003 ("the Act") and is responsible for considering all 
applications for “licensable activities”, as defined in section 1 of the Act. The 
purpose of licensing is to regulate the operation of licensable activities on 
licensed premises, qualifying clubs and at temporary events. Licensable 
activities, identified by the Act, include:

 Retail sale of alcohol
 Supply of hot food or hot drink from premises between 2300 - 0500hrs
 Supply of alcohol to club members
 Provision of entertainment listed below (known as "regulated 

entertainment") to the public or club members or with a view to profit:

 Film exhibitions

 Performances of a play

 Indoor sporting events

 Boxing or wrestling entertainment

 Dance performances
 

 Live music performances (some aspects exempt, see 13.19)

 Playing of recorded music (some aspects exempt, see 13.19)
1.5 There are a number of exceptions and details of these are set out in Sections 

173 to 175 and in Schedules 1 and 2 of the Act. 
1.6 The Licensing Authority has established a Licensing Committee consisting of 

15 Councillors. All matters relating to licensing functions come under the 
direction of this committee.

1.7     The Licensing Committee may establish one or more sub-committees to whom 
certain decisions will be delegated.  In the interests of speed and efficiency 
the Licensing Committee may also delegate some licensing decisions and 
functions to authorised officers. The Licensing Committee may receive reports 
on decisions made by officers to inform its overview of licensing matters.  
Appendix 1 (Schedule of Delegation) sets out the framework for licensing 
decisions.



5

2. LICENSING OBJECTIVES

2.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that the best means of promoting the 
licensing objectives (see paragraph 2.2) is through co-operation and 
partnership between local authorities, Police, local business, performers, local 
people and those involved in child protection. 

2.2 When dealing with licensing matters the Licensing Authority will promote and 
have regard to the four licensing objectives set out in the Act. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 The promotion of public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

2.3     The Licensing Authority's primary focus is the impact of licensed activities on 
those who are living or working in the vicinity of the premises concerned.  
Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the control of nuisance and 
anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the licensed 
premises. This is beyond the direct control of the individual, business or club 
holding the licence or certificate concerned. Nonetheless, it is an important 
aspect of such control and licensing law will always be part of a holistic 
approach to the management of the evening and night-time economy in this 
borough.

3. INTEGRATION OF THE POLICY INTO WIDER INITIATIVES 

3.1 Through consultation prior to publication, the Licensing Authority has 
endeavoured to ensure that this Policy is integrated with other local initiatives 
and that the views of other stakeholders who are involved, directly or indirectly 
in the promotion of the licensing objectives, are taken into account.

3.2 The Licensing Authority will work closely with the responsible authorities on 
issues of enforcement. Conditions attached to individual premises licences 
and club premises certificates may also reflect local crime prevention 
initiatives. Neighbouring authorities may also be consulted where appropriate.

3.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that there should be a clear separation of 
the planning and licensing systems. 

3.4 Planning Permission can sometimes be required where use of all/part of a 
domestic residential property for business purposes or change of 
use/changes to opening hours where Planning Permission has already been 
granted.  In these instances any Licence granted under the Licensing Act 
does not override any Planning Permission or condition requirements existing 
and you should discuss your proposals with the Planning & Development 
Service to obtain the appropriate advice before starting any new business 
venture or making changes to any existing business operations that already 
benefit from formal Planning Permission.

3.5 Premises must also comply with all other relevant legislation that imposes 
specific controls on their activities that affect, for example 

 gambling



6

 food safety 
 environmental protection and noise
 health and safety
 fire safety
 smoking
 equality and diversity
 planning and building controls

3.6 The Licensing Authority will seek to avoid duplication with other regulatory 
regimes wherever possible.

3.7 The Licensing Authority recognises that as part of implementing cultural 
initiatives it should encourage and promote live music, dancing and theatre for 
the wider benefit of the community.

3.8 The wider cultural benefits of entertainment will always be balanced with the 
need to prevent disturbance to local neighbourhoods. Care will be taken to 
ensure that only necessary and reasonable licensing conditions are imposed 
which do not discourage the promotion of entertainment. 

4. DETERMINATION OF LICENSING APPLICATIONS

4.1 Each application will be determined on its individual merits.

4.2 Nothing in the Licensing Policy will:

 Undermine the rights of any person to apply under the Act for any 
licence, certificate or notice

 Override the right of any person to make representations on any 
application or to seek a review of a licence or certificate where they are 
permitted to do so under the Act.

4.3 Conditions - Individual applicants are expected to promote the licensing 
objectives when making their application. Conditions that are attached to any 
licence may take into account matters such as the nature of the location, the 
type of premises, the regulated activities to be provided, the operational and 
management procedures of the premises and the needs of the local 
community.  Applicants may refer to the Guidance issued under section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003 for assistance. 

4.4 Where the Licensing Authority does not receive representation regarding the 
terms of an application it will grant the licence or certificate subject only to 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. Mandatory 
conditions prescribed in the Act will also be included.

4.5 The Licensing Authority will not impose conditions unless its discretion has 
been engaged following the making of representations and it has been 
satisfied at a hearing of the necessity to do so. A hearing would not need to 
take place if all parties reach an agreement beforehand.  Conditions will only 
then be imposed on licences and certificates where they are appropriate for 
the promotion of one or more of the four licensing objectives. Conditions will 
also be tailored to the individual characteristics of the premises and licensable 
activities concerned.    



7

4.6 Licensing hours - Flexible licensing hours for the sale of alcohol may help to 
avoid the possibility of large numbers of customers leaving premises 
simultaneously. This can help to reduce impact and disturbance at, for 
example, late night fast food outlets, taxi ranks and other sources of transport.

4.7 The Licensing Authority may permit shops, stores and supermarkets to sell 
alcohol for consumption off the premises at any time they are open for 
business. Where, however the Police make recommendations for the 
restriction of hours, then this will be considered.  Every sale of alcohol must 
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

5. TYPES OF LICENCES, CERTIFICATES AND NOTICES

Personal licences

5.1 A personal licence application may be granted to any applicant, who:

 Is ordinarily resident in the Licensing Authority’s district
 Is aged 18 or over 
 Possess a licensing qualification accredited by the Department of 

Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) or is a person of a prescribed 
description as determined by the Secretary of State.

5.2 A licence will not be granted to any applicant who has had a personal licence 
forfeited within the five year period preceding the date of the application.

5.3 Every application for a personal licence must be accompanied by details of 
convictions of any relevant or foreign offences in the prescribed form. This will 
assist the Licensing Authority in determining whether the applicant has any 
relevant unspent convictions.

 
5.4 The police may oppose an application if an applicant has a relevant unspent 

conviction or a conviction for a comparable offence in a foreign jurisdiction 
and believe the grant of a personal licence would undermine the crime 
prevention licensing objective. If a police objection is received the application 
will be determined by the Licensing Committee or Sub-Committee at a 
hearing where all representations relevant to application, will be taken into 
consideration. These may include the nature of any offences, the time since 
their occurrence and any mitigating circumstances. The applicant may attend 
the hearing and may be assisted or represented by any person whether or not 
that person is legally qualified.  There will be no need for a hearing if the 
applicant, Licensing Authority and Chief Officer of Police agree that it is not 
necessary.

Premises Licences

5.5 A Premises Licence is required for any premises used for one or more 
licensable activities as defined in paragraph 1.4. Those who may apply for 
licences are defined in section 16 of the Act as:

           ‘Any person who is 18 or over and who carries or intends to carry on a



8

            business which involves the use of premises for licensable activities may
            apply for a premises licence either on a permanent or time-limited basis.
            Certain other individuals and groups, including registered clubs, charities,
            National Health Service organisations etc may also apply for a licence.’

5.6 The requirements in relation to applications for Premises Licences are set out 
in section 17 of the Act. An application for a Premises Licence must be made 
on the prescribed form to the Licensing Authority (with copies to each of the 
appropriate responsible authorities, see paragraph 5.9). The application must 
be accompanied by:

 An operating schedule that demonstrates that the licensed premises 
can comply with the Licensing Authority's licensing policy and will 
promote the licensing objectives. 

 A plan of the premises to which the application relates in the prescribed 
form

 A form of consent from the individual who is to be specified in the 
licence as the Designated Premises Supervisor (where the application 
involves the sale of alcohol)

 The relevant fee

Fee levels and prescribed forms may be viewed on the Havant Borough 
Council website.

5.7 Applicants for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates are 
encouraged to speak to the Licensing Authority (and to the responsible 
authorities where relevant) for an informal discussion before submitting an 
application.  Unless making an electronic application, applicants are required 
to copy details of their applications to the “responsible authorities”, namely:

 The Chief Officer of Police;
 The local fire and rescue authority;
 The local enforcement agency for the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 

(Environmental Health) 
  The local Environmental Health authority
  The local Planning Authority;
 A body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters 

relating to the protection of children from harm;
 The local weights and measures authority (Trading Standards)
 Any licensing authority, other than the relevant licensing authority, in whose 

area part of the premises are situated.
 The local Primary Care Trust

(see details of licensing contacts in Appendix 2) 

5.8 Applicants are also required to advertise the application by placing notices on 
the premises and in a local newspaper. 

Further information and links to the electronic application procedures are 
available on the Council’s website.



9

Provisional Statements

5.9 Where premises are to be constructed, extended or substantially altered, new 
applicants or existing licence holders can apply for a Provisional Statement. 
This is a system of prior approval where a Premises Licence covering the 
desired licensable activities would be granted once the building work is 
completed. Where responsible authorities or interested parties make 
representations a hearing will be held. The Licensing Authority may attach 
conditions to promote any of the licensing objectives. It is recognised that 
structural alterations which change the layout and character of an existing 
licensed premises can have an effect on the licensing objectives. Detailed 
consideration is therefore required. 

5.10 It is possible for community, church and village halls to apply under section 
25A(6) to remove the mandatory condition of requiring a DPS and replace 
with an alternative licence condition in which a management committee is 
responsible for the supply of alcohol. This removes some of the associated 
burdens that the current conditions place on volunteers.  A management 
committee of a community, church or village hall that seeks the removal of the 
conditions from an existing licence, or wishes to apply for a licence that does 
not include them, will need to apply to the Licensing Authority for the 
conditions to be removed and the alternative condition imposed instead. 
There will be no automatic disapplication of the conditions in respect of any 
premises.

Club Premises Certificates

5.11 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that premises to which public access is 
restricted, and where alcohol is supplied not for profit, are distinct from 
commercial enterprises selling direct to the public. Premises holding Club 
Premises Certificates do not have the requirement for a Personal Licence 
holder or Designated Premises Supervisor.

5.12 If the Club decides that it wishes to offer its facilities commercially for use by 
the general public the Licensing Authority will consider an application for a 
Premises Licences. The applicant should consider whether any planning 
consent must be sought prior to the submission of the Premises Licence 
application. 

5.13 When a premises has the benefit of a Club Premises Certificate, an 
application may be made to allow those running the premises to supply 
alcohol for consumption off the premises to its members. Such supply will only 
be allowed during the hours that the premises are open for supply of alcohol 
to its members on the premises.

Temporary Event Notices

5.14 Temporary events involving licensable activities will be permitted if certain 
criteria are fulfilled. The Licensing Authority encourages persons organising 
events (“premises users”) to have due regard to any concerns of occupiers of 
premises sited adjacent to the proposed venue.



10

5.15 When a temporary event is proposed, notice of the event must be made to the 
Licensing Authority, the Chief Officer of Police and the Local Authority 
department (Environmental Health) responsible for minimizing or preventing 
the risk of pollution of the environment or of harm to human health 
(Environmental Health) at least 10 working days before the event is due to 
start. Organisers are encouraged to do this well before the statutory period is 
reached so that any problems can be resolved early.   

5.16 There is also the facility to apply for a ‘Late Temporary Event Notice’ which 
can be submitted at least 5 working days before the event.  

5.17 On receipt of a Temporary Event Notice the Licensing Authority will issue an 
acknowledgement or a counter notice. A counter notice relates to 
circumstances where certain limits permitted under the Act for running 
temporary events have been exceeded. These limits are detailed in section 
107 of the Act.  

5.18 If the Chief Officer of Police and the Local Authority department 
(Environmental Health) are satisfied that the event will undermine any of the 
four licensing objectives, an objection notice stating the reasons will be served 
on the premises user and the Licensing Authority within 3 working days.

5.19 The Licensing Authority will then hold a hearing to consider the objections 
unless all parties agree that a hearing is unnecessary. If the Licensing 
Authority agrees with the Police or Local Authority (Environmental Health) 
objection then it will serve a counter notice on the premises user. This counter 
notice means that permission for the temporary event has not been granted.

5.20 The Police and the Local Authority department (Environmental Health) are the 
only statutory consultee.  When an application is received by the Licensing 
Authority however, it will (for information purposes only) notify the other 
responsible authorities where appropriate. 

6. CUMULATIVE EFFECT AND SPECIAL SATURATION POLICIES

6.1 The Licensing Authority will not take 'market need' into account for a particular 
type of premises in its area when considering a licence application. This is a 
matter for planning development control and the open market.

6.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that the cumulative impact of the number, 
type and density of licensed premises in a given area, may lead to serious 
problems of nuisance and disorder. 

 
6.3 Representations may be received from a responsible authority (see paragraph 

5.8) or any other person that an area has become saturated with premises 
making it a focal point for large groups of people. This concentration of 
premises may create exceptional problems of crime and disorder and public 
nuisance over and above the impact from the individual premises.

6.4 In these circumstances, the Licensing Authority may decide that the 
application of specific conditions is unlikely to address these problems. It may 
instead consider refusing new premises licences or club premises certificates 



11

if it believes that granting of additional licences would undermine the licensing 
objectives.

6.5 To do this the Licensing Authority will first adopt a “special saturation policy”. 
For this the Licensing Authority will follow these steps:

 identification of concern about crime and disorder or public nuisance
 consideration of whether crime and disorder or public nuisance problems 

are arising and are being caused by the customers of licensed premises.
 identifying the area from which problems are arising and the boundaries of 

that area. (Alternatively, the risk factors may be such that the area is 
reaching a point when a cumulative effect is imminent. Evidence of anti-
social behaviour from Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships and 
noise disturbance from Environmental Health officers will be taken into 
account)

 consultation with those specified in section 5(3) of the Act
 subject to that consultation, inclusion of a “special saturation policy” about 

future premises licence or club premises certificate applications from that 
area within the terms of this licensing policy

 publication of the “special saturation policy” as part of the statement of 
licensing policy required by the Act

6.6 Where a “special saturation policy” is adopted by the Council any new 
application would normally be refused. Applicants will need to demonstrate in 
their operating schedules why the operation of the premises would not add to 
the cumulative impact already being experienced. Where representations are 
received, however, the onus will also be on the objector to provide evidence 
that the addition of the premises in question would produce the cumulative 
impact claimed. The impact will be different for premises with different styles 
and characteristics.

6.7 The Licensing Authority may approve licences that are unlikely to add 
significantly to the cumulative impact, e.g. restaurants, theatres etc. 
Departures from the “special saturation policy” may be made and the 
Licensing Authority will always consider the circumstances of each individual 
application on its own merits. 

6.8 The adoption of a “special saturation policy” does not relieve responsible 
authorities or any other person of the need to make a relevant representation 
before the Licensing Committee.

6.9 Once adopted, special saturation policies will be reviewed regularly to assess 
whether they are still required.

6.10 A “special saturation policy” will not be used as a ground for revoking an 
existing premises licence or certificate when representations are received 
about problems with those premises. The “special saturation policy” will also 
not impose any trading hours, terminal hours or quotas (number or capacity of 
premises) as this would remove regard to the individual characteristics of the 
premises concerned. 



12

6.11 Other mechanisms exist to control the anti-social behaviour of a minority of 
consumers who behave badly and unlawfully after leaving licensed premises 
etc.  These include:

 Positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in 
partnership with local businesses and residents, transport operators and 
other departments of the local authority

 Power of local authorities to designate parts of the district as alcohol-free 
areas

 The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas.
 Police enforcement of legislation concerning disorder and anti-social 

behaviour including the issuing of fixed penalty notices and community 
protection notices.

 The prosecution of any Personal Licence holder or member of staff at 
premises that are selling alcohol to people who are either drunk or under-
age

 Police powers to close any licensed premises or temporary event 
immediately for up to 24 hours, on grounds of disorder or excessive noise 
emanating from the premises.

 The power of the Police and other responsible authorities or an interested 
party to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question.

6.12.1 The Borough of Havant is subject to a Designated Public Places Order 
(DPPO).  This order empowers the Police, Police Community Support Officers 
(PCSOs) and Accredited Community Support Officers (ASCOs) to remove 
alcohol from individuals involved in anti-social behaviour.  The Designated 
Public Places Order was made by the Local Authority under Section 13 of the 
Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001.

However, where the Local Authority occupies or manages a premises, or 
where premises are managed on its behalf and it licenses that place for 
alcohol sales, the DPPO (as amended under Section 26 of the Violent Crime 
Reduction Act 2006) will not apply when the licence is being used for alcohol 
sales (or 30 minutes after), but the place will be the subject to the DPPO at all 
other times.  This will allow local authorities to promote community events 
whilst still using DPPOs to tackle the problems of anti-social drinking.  

6.12.2 A Community Alcohol Partnership (CAP) was launched in March 2012 on 
Hayling Island which focuses on the nuisance created by young people 
drinking alcohol in public places and becoming involved in anti-social 
behaviour, vandalism.  It also aims to address the problem of adults 
purchasing alcohol for young people and being able to access alcohol from 
home supplies.

 
7. LATE NIGHT LEVY AND EARLY MORNING RESTRICTION ORDERS

7.1 The Late Night Levy, introduced by the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011, enables licensing authorities to raise a contribution 
from late-opening alcohol suppliers towards policing and cleaning after the 
night-time economy. It is a local power that licensing authorities can choose 
whether or not to exercise. It must cover the whole of the licensing authority’s 
area. However, the licensing authority will also choose the period during 



13

which the levy applies every night, between midnight and 6am, and decide 
what exemptions and reductions should apply from a list set out in 
regulations.  

At present Havant Borough Council has not exercised this power.  Should it 
choose to introduce the Late Night Levy it must consider the costs of policing, 
cleansing and other arrangements for the reduction or prevention of crime and 
disorder. In connection with the supply of alcohol between midnight and 6 am, 
and having regard to those costs, the desirability of raising revenue to be 
applied in accordance with the legal application of net amount of levy 
payment.

7.2 An Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Order (EMRO) enables licensing 
Authorities to restrict sales of alcohol in the whole or a part of their area for 
any specified period between 12 midnight and 6 am if they consider it 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The Police Reform 
and Social Responsibility Act 2011 extended the flexibility of the existing 
EMRO power in the 2003 Act to provide Licensing Authorities with an 
additional tool to shape and determine local licensing, and to address specific 
problems caused by late night drinking. 

At present the Licensing Authority has decided not to exercise this power. 

8. REPRESENTATIONS, REVIEWS AND APPEALS

8.1 Responsible authorities or any other person may make representations (in 
opposition or in support) to the Licensing Authority in writing on any 
application to grant, vary or review a Premises Licence or a Club Premises 
Certificate.  A representation must be relevant to any of the four licensing 
objectives and not be frivolous, repetitious or vexatious.
8.2 If the Licensing Authority determines that the representations are 
relevant then a hearing will be held to consider them. In determining an 
application the Licensing Authority will give the appropriate weight to:

 The steps that are necessary to promote the licensing objectives;
 The representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 

parties;
 The Act
 The Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
 Its own Licensing Policy

8.3 The Licensing Authority can only review a licence or certificate where it is 
alleged that the licensing objectives are not being met. The Licensing 
Authority will then hold a hearing to consider the merits of an application 
where the representation is considered relevant as defined in section 51 of 
the Act.  The licence holders and objectors will be informed of the hearing 
protocol and will be invited to attend hearings to present their arguments.  
Hearings will be held promptly so that the issue can be dealt with efficiently 
and effectively.

8.4 Before arrangements for a review are initiated, authorised officers (licensing 
officers or officers of the responsible authorities) will make every effort to 



14

consult with the review applicant and licence holder in an attempt to resolve 
any issues informally.

8.5 Following a Review Hearing the Licensing Authority may: 

 modify the conditions of the licence/certificate
 exclude a licensable or qualifying club activity from the scope of the 

licence/certificate
 remove the Designated Premises Supervisor (premises licence only);
 suspend the licence/certificate for a period not exceeding three months 
 revoke the licence/withdraw the certificate

8.6 Where reviews arise and the Licensing Authority determines that the crime 
prevention objective is being undermined through a premises being used in 
connection with crime, then revocation of the licence (even in the first 
instance) will be seriously considered.

8.7 The Act contains provision for appeals by aggrieved parties against decisions 
made by the Licensing Authority. Appeals must be made to the Magistrates’ 
Court for the area in which the premises is situated.  For Personal Licences 
the appeal must be made to the Magistrates’ Court for the area in which the 
Local Authority’s decision was made.

8.8 The rights of appeal and reasons for the decision(s) taken by the Licensing 
Authority will be provided to all parties concerned with any licensing decision. 
The decision will have regard to the Licensing Authority’s Licensing Policy, 
statutory guidance, Regulations and the Act itself.

9. ENFORCEMENT

9.1 Havant Borough Council aims to protect the safety and welfare of people, 
including members of the public, who may be exposed to risks from the way 
that licensable activities are carried out and to protect the interests of those 
who may be adversely affected by such activities if they are unregulated.

9.2 The use of enforcement powers, including prosecution, is important, both to 
secure compliance with the law and to ensure that those who have duties 
under the law may be held to account.  Enforcement action instigated by the 
Licensing Authority will have regard to the Council’s Policy on Regulation and 
Enforcement.

9.3 Where a Licensing Authority is notified by a Court or the Police regarding the 
issue of a premises closure order, it must review the premises licence within 
28 days of receipt of the notice.  

10. OFFENCES

10.1 The Part 7 of the Act sets out a number of offences and proceedings, such as 
prosecution, may be instigated by the following:



15

 The Local Authority
 The Police
 The Crown Prosecution Service
 In the case of an offence under section 146 or 147 (sale of alcohol to 

children), by Hampshire Trading Standards Department.

11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES 

11.1 The Equality Act 2010 places a legal obligation on public authorities to have 
due regard to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

11.2 Protected Characteristics are, Age, Disability, Gender reassignment, Marriage 
and civil partnership, Pregnancy and maternity, Race, Religion or belief, Sex 
and Sexual orientation

11.3 The Local Authority may assess and consult on the likely impact of proposed 
policies on equality and it may monitor policies for any adverse impact on the 
promotion of equality, and may publish the results of such consultations, 
assessments and monitoring.

 
11.4 It is the Licensing Authority’s policy that nothing within this statement of 

licensing policy will undermine the right of any individual to apply for any 
licence or authorisation provided for under the Act. Equally, nothing within this 
statement of licensing policy will undermine the right of any individual to make 
representation(s) on an application or to seek a review of an existing licence 
or certificate.  In addition, no applicant or licence holder will be disadvantaged 
by conditions or requirements which are not relevant to their application or to 
their licence or to the four licensing objectives.

12. DATA PROTECTION

12.1 The Licensing Authority may use the information submitted on any application 
form for any licence(s) or permission(s) provided for under the Act for the 
purpose of its statutory function(s) under the Act.

12.2 All applicants have the right to ask for a copy of the information that the 
Licensing Authority holds about them under the Act.

12.3 By making an application to the Licensing Authority for any licence or 
permission under the Act, all applicants consent to our processing sensitive 
personal data about them where this is necessary and lawful.

12.4 The Licensing Authority will maintain registers of all matters detailed in 
Schedule 3 of the Act and any other information prescribed by regulations. 



16

Any person is permitted to obtain a copy of this information from the Licensing 
Authority.  Public registers may be available via the Council’s website.

13. OPERATING SCHEDULES

13.1 The Operating Schedule forms part of the completed application for a 
Premises Licence. It should include information which is necessary to enable 
any responsible authority or interested party to assess whether the steps to 
be taken to promote the licensing objectives are satisfactory. Specific 
requirements on what the schedule should contain and how it should be 
presented are contained in sections 17 and 71 of the Act and in regulations. 
General policies relevant to each of the licensing objectives are detailed 
below.

 
13.2 In order to minimise problems and the necessity for hearings, the Licensing 

Authority encourages applicants and clubs to consult with the responsible 
authorities when operating schedules are being prepared. The Licensing 
Authority will provide guidance to applicants to aid this process. 

13.3 Any individual preparing an operating schedule may volunteer any additional 
measures intended to be taken to promote the licensing objectives. It should 
be noted however that if incorporated into the licence or certificate as a 
condition, then these measures will become enforceable under the Act. A 
breach of a condition may result in prosecution.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

13.4 The following are offences under the Act:

 To sell or supply alcohol to a person who is drunk.
 To knowingly allow disorderly conduct on licensed premises.
 For the holder of a premises licence or a Designated Premises 

Supervisor to knowingly keep or to allow to be kept on licensed 
premises any goods that have been imported without payment of duty 
or which have otherwise been unlawfully imported or acquired.

13.5 To promote the prevention of crime and disorder the range and scope of 
control measures will depend on a number of factors. These may include 

 nature and style of the venue
 activities being conducted there
 location of the premises
 anticipated clientele of the business involved
 past record of the premises

13.6 The applicant may indicate in the Operating Schedule the steps he/she 
proposes to prevent crime and disorder. Where appropriate and necessary, 
the Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to licences and 
certificates to prevent crime and disorder. These may be drawn from the 
information relating to the prevention of crime and disorder objective 
contained in the Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003.



17

 
13.7 It is recognised that Club Premises may operate under their own codes of 

discipline to ensure the good order and behaviour of members.

13.8 The Licensing Authority will expect licence holders to have adequate 
management practices in place, as well as suitable training for staff, to ensure 
that sales of alcohol are not made directly or indirectly to persons under the 
age of 18.  Practices also need to be in place to ensure that sales are not 
made to persons who are either drunk or who may commit crime and 
disorder.

13.9 The government published its Alcohol Strategy in 2012 and The Retail of 
Alcohol Standards Group produced its Guidance for the Responsible Retailing 
of Alcohol in 2014.  The Licensing Authority encourages all retailers of alcohol 
to adhere to the guidance and this will be taken into account when there is a 
complaint made against a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate.

13.10 The Licensing Authority will also expect licence holders to be aware of the 
misuse of drugs and to take all reasonable steps to prevent the entry of drugs 
into licensed premises.  Licence holders must take appropriate steps to 
prevent drugs being supplied within the premises.

13.11 The Licensing Authority will expect licence holders of venues likely to be 
affected by alcohol or drug abuse to be familiar with the guidance issued by 
the British Institute of Inn Keeping on drug awareness.  Licence holders 
should also take account of the recommendations of the appropriate British 
Institute of Inn Keeping Awarding Body training handbooks. 

13.12 Licence holders must make themselves aware of the detail of the new 
mandatory conditions that came into force in 2010 and 2014. These 
conditions include: 

1.New controls on irresponsible promotions (such as certain types of drinking 
games, provision and promotion of discounted or free alcohol, alcohol as 
prizes etc.)
2. The provision of free tap water
3. Age verification procedures
4. Provision of alcohol in smaller measures
5. Minimum pricing

Public Safety

13.13 The safety of members of the public must be protected when they visit 
licensed premises.  Applicants must demonstrate that they have considered 
and put into effect, measures to protect:

 customers
 the interests of premises in the vicinity and
 members of the public (including those living in the vicinity)

13.15 The Licensing Authority will expect operating schedules to address the 
possible risks to public safety and to detail how the premises will be properly 
managed and maintained to ensure public safety at all times.  



18

13.16 Where appropriate the Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions 
to licences and certificates to promote public safety. These may be drawn 
from the information contained in the Guidance issued under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

13.17 The Licensing Authority will exercise its responsibilities to prevent public 
nuisance being caused by licensable activities.  Public nuisance can range 
from low level nuisance affecting a small number of people to widespread 
disturbance affecting the whole community.  Public nuisance associated with 
licensable activities may arise from a range of causes including noise, odour, 
light emission and litter. The Licensing Act, and powers contained therein, will 
be the default remedy to address these issues associated to premises where 
a valid licence is in place.  To prevent public nuisance the Licensing Authority 
will seek to ensure that:

 Effective and proportionate controls are in place to prevent public 
nuisance arising from any licensed activity  

 Evidence of public nuisance brought to the attention of the Licensing 
Authority will be considered. Where necessary the Licence will be 
amended or revoked to reduce the likelihood of further nuisance

 Where it is in the public interest enforcement action will be considered 
in accordance with the adopted Local Authority Enforcement Policy.

 13.18 The Licensing Authority’s decisions will be evidence based; with due regard 
and weigh attributed to any evidence brought forward by Responsible 
Authorities or interested parties.

13.19 Noise - Licensable activities may create noise. In some cases this may lead to 
changes in the character of a location and to occasional increases in noise 
and disturbance.  This must be balanced against the other objectives of the 
Licensing Act.  The Live Music Act 2012 and Legislative Reform 
(Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 de-regulated some forms of 
entertainment.  

There is a range of reactive statutory provisions available to responsible 
authorities to deal with certain types of nuisance in some circumstances.  The 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 provides remedies in respect of statutory 
nuisance arising from noise, odour and light in certain circumstances.  In 
respect of nuisance arising from commercial premises, a number of defences 
are available.  In addition, the provisions of Part 8 of the Licensing Act 2003 
enables a senior police officer to immediately close down (for up to 24 hours) 
any licensed premises or temporary event causing a public nuisance.  Similar 
powers under the Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 are 
available to the Chief Executive of the relevant Local Authority (section 76).  
The provisions of the Licensing Act, however, provide an opportunity to seek 
to prevent nuisance from occurring in the first place.  This can be achieved by 
applicants planning and implementing appropriate strategies to prevent 
nuisance at the outset by including relevant preventative measures within 
their Operating Schedule



19

13.20 Sources of Noise – Public noise nuisance can be caused by a variety of 
different noise sources associated with licensable activities.  These include:

 Noise from music, singing and speech originating from inside or 
outside a building

 Activities within gardens and play areas
 Rowdy behaviour
 Use of car parks and access roads
 Delivery, collection and storage activities
 Staff activity
 Cleaning and washing-up activities
 Plant, machinery and equipment

13.21 The factors that are most important in determining whether the noise impact is 
likely to be significant in terms of public nuisance include:

 Loudness of the noise
 Character of the noise
 Time of the day when the noise is created.  (Noise created during the 

late evening or night time is much more likely to be a problem)
 Frequency and duration of the noise
 Proximity of residential or business premises where occupants may 

hear the noise
 Existing noise levels in the area

13.22 Any activity including public entertainment, eating or drinking on or near the 
premises has the potential to adversely impact the surrounding area.  The 
impact of noise generated by these activities and by customers departing 
either on foot or in cars is particularly intrusive at night when ambient noise 
levels are much lower.

13.23 Control of noise – A range of specific control measures are available for 
reducing noise and preventing public nuisance  These control measures can 
be grouped into the following broad strategies:

 Engineering controls e.g. noise control for plant and equipment, sound 
insulation of buildings

 Regard for the location of noisy premises relative to the location of 
noise sensitive sites 

 Administrative controls e.g. hours during which amplified music may be 
played, sound limiting devices, management and supervision

 Providing information e.g. information to direct clientele to leave quietly

Modest levels of noise created inside a building can usually be attenuated by 
traditional building structures provided simple measures are taken; such as closing 
doors and windows. High levels of noise such as that generated by amplified music 
or associated with live performances or discos may require buildings to be modified 
to prevent the escape of sound energy. 



20

13.24 Noise generated from outside buildings is much more difficult to control.  If 
acceptable then administrative controls to limit the times of activity and the 
provision of information to encourage dispersal will be appropriate. 

13.25 A number of specific issues that pose particular risk of public nuisance are 
identified below:

 Garden areas and outdoor smoking areas

The beer gardens of public houses are an asset to the premises.  Similarly, 
the provision of tables and chairs outside the premises either on the highway 
or on private land can enhance the attractiveness of the venue. Late at night, 
however the use of these same tables and chairs can contribute to noise 
problems as they can encourage patrons and passers by to loiter rather than  
disperse. 

The use of tables and chairs for recreation and refreshment on the public 
highway requires a separate licence issued by the local authority under the 
provisions of the Highways Act 1980. Where appropriate, time restrictions 
may be placed on the use of outside chairs and beer gardens to prevent 
adverse impacts on the safety and amenity of local residents.

 Amplified music

Amplified music poses a particular risk of nuisance if it is loud or is dominated 
by low (bass) frequencies. In respect of potential public noise nuisance from 
public houses, clubs, hotels’ discotheques, restaurants, cafes, community 
halls and similar premises, account should be taken of the recommendations 
set out in guidance documents such as the Good Practice Guide on the 
Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, March 2003 (Institute of Acoustics).

To establish the risk of public noise nuisance the Operating Schedule will 
need to set out the type and frequency of activities that the licensed premises 
intends to carry out.  The control measures that need to be implemented to 
prevent public nuisance may include:

 Improvements in the level of sound insulation provided
 Provision of lobbied entrances
 Provision of a mechanical ventilation or air conditioning system
 Management methods for controlling the volume of noise 
 Use of a house sound system only
 Use of devices to automatically limit noise volume in the 

premises
 Design and location of the loudspeakers
 Controls over the times music is played

 Outdoor events involving music



21

These types of events pose particular risks of public nuisance.  Account 
should be taken of extant guidance; the Noise Council Code of Practice on 
Environmental Noise at Concerts for example will establish a generic 
baseline to be adopted.

 Plant and equipment

Fixed plant and machinery such as refrigeration equipment, air 
conditioning plant and cooking extraction systems, if not properly located, 
designed, constructed and maintained can cause noise disturbance.  The 
noise produced may not be a problem during the early evening but may 
cause disturbance to local residents later at night when they are trying to 
sleep.  Applicants proposing to operate such plant and machinery should 
demonstrate in their Operating Schedules that these noise sources have 
been properly assessed and noise abated.

 Structurally attached

Where premises that are intended to be used for loud music are 
structurally attached to residential or other sensitive uses these may pose 
difficult engineering problems in preventing structurally transmitted noise 
problems.  Generally, these types of use will be unacceptable, unless 
proven engineering solutions have been designed, incorporated and then 
tested. In these circumstances any Licence may be conditional on the 
modelled, projected benefits of a scheme being evidenced through real 
time testing and assurance.

 Clientele leaving premises

The Licensing Authority encourages operators of popular venues   
(including takeaways), which attract queues, to help reduce disturbance to 
local residents.  This can sometimes be achieved through the use of door 
supervisors or by ensuring that the direction of the queue is as far away as 
possible from residential accommodation.  Applicants should also address 
in their Operating Schedules practical measures to control the disturbance 
from patrons leaving the premises, particularly after midnight.

 Odour

Public odour nuisance can be caused by a variety of activities associated 
with licensed premises.  This includes:

 Inadequate storage of food waste  
 Cooking activities
 Cooking extract systems

Particular care is needed in the design of extract systems serving cooking   
areas.  Account should be taken of the guidance contained within the 
DEFRA Guidance on the control of odour and noise from commercial 
kitchen extractor systems.  

 Light



22

Public nuisance may arise from artificial illumination used in open areas 
such as gardens.  Lighting should not be permitted to create excessive 
illumination at neighbouring property and should be shielded and directed 
to avoid glare.  Account should be taken of guidance on reduction of 
obtrusive light, for example, that issued by the Institute of Lighting 
Professionals. 

 Smoking and Litter

It is illegal to smoke in an enclosed or substantially enclosed public or 
work place. Whilst smoking is not a regulated activity under the Act, the 
volume of patrons smoking outside premises in gardens and purpose built 
shelters has increased since these provisions came into force. Premises 
staff will need to have regard to the additional noise from patrons who 
have moved outside to smoke and should introduce suitable controls to 
combat this. Whilst premises staff may not be held wholly responsible for 
the actions of its customers once they leave a venue, those using gardens 
or who intend to return to the premises, do remain the responsibility of the 
site.

Premises staff should also take particular steps to combat litter from 
smoking as this may give rise to complaints.

13.26 The Operating Schedule provides the opportunity for applicants to 
demonstrate that they understand the risks of public nuisance posed by their 
intended application and have identified appropriate means to control these 
risks.  The Licensing Authority may attach conditions to licenses that are 
consistent with the Operating Schedule.  

The Licensing Authority will expect Operating Schedules to take account of 
the nature of the area where the premises are situated, the type of premises 
concerned, the licensable activities to be provided and the needs of the local 
community.  The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to consider how 
they intend the Licensed Premises to remain a “good neighbour” both to 
residents and to other businesses.  

Where there is an identified risk of public nuisance, the Operating Schedule 
may need to be supplemented by technical reports.

Where appropriate the Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions 
to licenses and certificates to prevent public nuisance.  These may be drawn 
from information relating to the prevention of public nuisance in the Guidance 
issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Protection of Children from Harm 

13.27 The Licensing Authority does not seek to limit the access of children to any 
premises unless it is necessary for the prevention of physical, moral or 
psychological harm to them.  Each application will be determined on its own 
merit on a case by case basis. 



23

13.28 It is unlawful under the Act:

 To allow an unaccompanied child (under 16 years old) to be present on 
premises which are “exclusively or primarily” used for the supply and 
consumption of alcohol there, (e.g. public houses) or

 To allow an unaccompanied child to be present on premises used for the 
supply of alcohol for consumption there between midnight and 0500hrs, 
(e.g. premises such as restaurants).

Both these offences relate to the times when a premise is open for business.

13.29 Where appropriate the Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions 
to licences and certificates to protect children from harm. These may be 
drawn from information relating to the protection of children from harm issued 
under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

13.30 Specific attention will be necessary in the following situations:

 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the 
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage 
drinking

 Premises with a known association with drug taking or dealing
 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises
 Where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the 

exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises.
 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature is provided. 

This will include topless bar staff, striptease, lap dancing, tabletop or pole 
dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, 
feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving 
strong and offensive language.

13.31 When deciding whether additional conditions should be imposed the 
Licensing Authority will consider each application on its own merits. In such 
cases, it may, in exceptional circumstances, impose a complete prohibition on 
the admission or presence of children. The type of controls the Licensing 
Authority may impose include:

 Limitations on the hours when children may be present
 Limitations on the presence of children under certain ages when particular 

specified activities are taking place
 Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given 

access
 Age limitations
 Requirements for accompanying adults and 
 Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any or certain 

licensable activities are taking place 

13.32  Where there is provision of entertainment specifically for children (e.g. 
children’s disco) or where the children themselves are performers, the 
Licensing Authority will normally require the presence of sufficient adults to 
control the access and egress of the children and to ensure their safety. 



24

13.33 Venue operators seeking premises licences and club premises certificates 
may volunteer prohibitions and/or restrictions in their Operating Schedules if 
they have determined that the presence of children is undesirable or 
inappropriate. 

13.34  The Portman Group’s ‘Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and 
Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks’ seeks to ensure alcoholic drinks are packaged 
and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to persons 18 years 
or older. It plays an important part in protecting children from harm because it 
addresses the naming, marketing and promotion of alcoholic products sold in 
licensed premises in a manner which may appeal to or attract minors. The 
Licensing Authority recommends the use of this code.

13.35 Hampshire Trading Standards, in its agreed protocol with Hampshire 
Constabulary, has primary responsibility for enforcing legislation to prevent 
under-age sales from off-licensed trade. Further information is available in the 
Retail of Alcohol Standards Group ‘Guidance for the Responsible Retailing of 
Alcohol in England and Wales.’    

13.36  Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority expects licence holders to include 
in their Operating Schedule arrangements for restricting children from viewing 
age-restricted films classified according to the recommendations of the British 
Board of Film Classification.

13.37 Where the exhibition of films is permitted, the authority will expect the age 
restrictions of the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) in respect of the 
films to be fully met. 

13.38 For specialist film festivals, where it is desired to show films not classified by 
the BBFC, the Licensing Authority may classify the films concerned. The 
Licensing Authority may use the guidelines published by the BBFC to do this.

The Licensing Authority welcomes comments and observations on this Policy. 
These should be addressed to:

The Licensing Officer
Havant Borough Council, 
Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX
Tel: 023 92446660
Email:   licensing@havant.gov.uk



25

APPENDIX 1

SCHEDULE OF DELEGATIONS 

Matter to be dealt with Licensing Committee or  
Sub-Committee

Authorised Officer

Application for personal 
licence    

If a police objection   If no objection made

Application for personal 
licence with unspent 
convictions

All cases

Application for premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate

If a representation made If no representation made

Application for provisional 
statement

If a representation made If no representation made

Application to vary premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate

If a representation made If no representation made

Application to vary 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor

If a Police objection All other cases

Request to be removed as 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor

All cases

Application for transfer of 
premises licence

If a Police objection All other cases

Applications for interim 
authorities

If a Police objection All other cases

Application to review 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate

All cases

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant, 
frivolous or vexatious etc

All cases

Decision to object when local 
authority gis a consultee and 
not the relevant authority 
considering the application

All cases

Determination of a Police 
and/or Environmental Health  
objection to a temporary 
event notice

All cases

In cases where the 
Magistrates’ Court has 
determined the licence on 
appeal

All cases



26

Application for a minor 
variation to a
premises/club premises 
certificate

All cases

Application by holder of a 
community premises
licence to dis-apply the 
requirement for a DPS

All cases



27

APPENDIX 2

LICENSING CONTACTS

Havant Licensing Licensing Team
Havant Borough Council, 
Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX
Telephone: 023 9244 6660
licensing@havant.gov.uk

Police Licensing Fareham Police Station
Quay Street
Fareham
Hampshire PO16 0LE
Tel: 101
force.licensing@hampshire.pnn.police.uk

Police Headquarters HQ, West Hill,
Winchester
SO22 5DB
Tel: 101
Fax: 01962 871204

Fire Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service HQ
Business Fire Safety,
Leigh Road, EastleighHampshire
SO50 9SJTel: 02392 855180
csprotection.admin@hantsfire.gov.uk

Environmental Health 

Public Nuisance
(noise, odour etc)

Environment Health Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX
Tel: 023 9244 6670
EHEnvironment@havant.gov.uk

Planning Head of Planning & Development
Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX
Tel: 023 9244 6019



28

Environmental Health

Health and Safety

Health and Safety 
Executive

Environmental Health Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX
Tel: 023 9244 6654
EHCommercialShared Mailbox@havant.gov.uk

Priestley House
Priestley Road, 
Basingstoke RG24 9MW
Tel:: 0300 0031 647
hse.licensing@hse.gsi.gov.uk

Child Protection The Safeguarding Unit
Clarendon House
Monarch Way
Winchester
Hampshire
SO22 5PW
Tel: 0300 555 1375
child.protection@hants.gov.uk

Trading Standards Hampshire  Trading Standards
Montgomery House
Monarch Way
Winchester
Hampshire SO22 5PW
Tel: 01962 833620
liquor.licensing@hants.gov.uk

Public Health in 
Hampshire

Public Health Team
Hampshire County Council
WinchesterHampshire
SO23 8TG
public.health@hants.gov.uk

Security Industry 
Authority

PO Box 1293,  Liverpool L69 1AX
Tel: 0844 892 1025
www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk

Disclosure and 
Barring Service

PO Box 3961, Royal Wooton SN4 4HFInformation Line: 
03000 200 190
www.gov.uk/dbs

The Performing Rights 
Society

 2 Pancras Square, London  N1C 4AG
Telephone: 020 7580 5544
www.prsfor music.com

British Beer & Pub 
Association

Ground Floor, Brewers Hall,
Aldermanbury Square, 
London EC2V 7HR



29

Telephone: 020 7627 9191
www.beerandpub.com

The Portman Group  4th Floor, 20 Conduit Street, London  W1S 2XW
Telephone:  020 7290 1460
www.portman-group.org.uk

British Institute of 
Innkeeping

Infor House, 1 Lakeside Road, 
Farnborough 
GU14 6XP
Telephone: 01276 684449
www.bii.org



30

APPENDIX 3

Customer & Equality Impact Assessment

Once you have agreed the scope of this assessment within your team, Please use this 
template inline with the CEIA Guidance notes.

Use the links to understand more about Equality issues locally and ensure you take any 
opportunity possible to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations between those with a protected characteristic and those who do not share 

it within your assessment. The HBC Equality Profile can be viewed at 
http://www.havant.gov.uk/planning-policy-design/diversity-profile-and-2011-census-

outcomes

SECTION 1 – Policy impact details

1. Responsible 
Officer (author) Service Manager - Environmental Health

2. Is this assessment 
for EHDC or HBC or 
joint? 

HBC

3. Name and brief 
description of the 
service/policy/ 
function to be 
assessed

Licensing Policy under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003
Sets out HBC’s policy in respect of its licensing functions for the next 5 
years.

4. Objectives of the 
service/policy to be 
assessed

Sets out the policy on how HBC will promote the licensing objectives in 
respect of its licensing functions under the Act i.e. issue of licences for 
the sale of alcohol, provision of entertainment and late night 
refreshment.

5. Scope of this 
assessment

Functions under the Licensing Act 2003 only:
The Act sets out four licensing objectives which must be taken into 
account when a local authority carries out its functions. They are:

1. the prevention of crime and disorder,
2. public safety,
3. prevention of public nuisance, and
4. the protection of children from harm

6. Has Section 2 been 
attached? Yes

7. Have you 
considered any 
complaints data?

No complaints received in last 12 months concerning licensing service



31

8. Have you 
undertaken any 
consultation or 
engagement?

Yes, consultation is taking place with the statutory consultees identified 
in the 2003 Act. Consultation is also taking place with Borough 
Councillors and EHDC Licensing Team. 

9. Consultation/
engagement 
outcomes 

Awaited

10. From section 2 
and the above 
answers are there 
concerns that the 
policy could have a 
differential (either 
positive or negative) 
impact?

There are no concerns about the policy having a differential impact 

11. Do you need to 
seek more 
information to make 
a more informed 
decision? (Bench-
marking with other 
LA’s or focus groups 
etc)?

No

12. Reasons for any 
impact and any 
changes considered 
to the Policy/Service

The flexibility provided by Licensing Act 2003 has been viewed by 
some as a potential vehicle for increased alcohol consumption with the 
accompanying health implications. This may impact on particular 
groups of our society such as young people.
The licensing provisions were designed to have a positive impact on 
most groups in our society, namely to:

 provide improved regulation for businesses and greater choice 
for consumers.

 reduce alcohol related crime and disorder, under-age drinking, 
public nuisance and anti-social behaviour.

 encourage a European café style culture.
 encourage live music and cultural events in the wider 

community.

13. Are there 
opportunities to 
better promote 
service/policy 
inclusion?

The statutory consultation process goes a considerable way to promote 
better policy inclusion. During this review of licensing policy we are 
working with our partners at EHDC to encourage consistency in 
decision making across a wider area. 



32

14. Assessment 
outcomes and 
improvement plan

Any individual has the right to apply for a licence, make representations 
about an application or to apply for a review of licence. Each will be 
considered on its own merits and according to statutory requirements of 
the Licensing Act 2003.

Staff are trained in equality and diversity and are aware of their 
responsibilities to apply consistency and fairness and to avoid making 
prejudgements when arriving at their decisions.  

Licensing Committee members continue to receive training on the 
application and the context of the licensing act including equal 
opportunities issues.

15. Monitoring 
timetable of this 
report and the 
improvement plan

Review every 5 years. 

16. Which action plan 
will these actions be 
added to and who is 
responsible for that 
plan?

The Licensing Committee retain responsibility for this policy.

Please ensure that you have provided as much evidence as possible to support the 
responses you have given.

Additional Comments

Signed: H Smith (Completing Officer who is responsible)

Signed: A Pritchard (Manager with overall responsibility)

Signed:  H Newbury (Critical Friend, from another service)

Date: 4.1.16

(please date the sign off and send to the Corporate Equality Group via 
caren.ransom@east.hants.gov.uk or caren.ransom@havant.gov.uk for quality control)

mailto:caren.ransom@east.hants.gov.uk
mailto:caren.ransom@havant.gov.uk


33

SECTION 2 - Screening Template

IMPACTS

ISSUE GROUP
+ve -

ve 
? No

REASONING & 
EVIDENCE

Men √GENDER
Women √

GENDER 
REASSIGNMENT

Transsexual / 
Transgender √

PREGNANCY & 
MATERNITY

Pregnancy & 
Maternity √

Over 80 √
Over 65 √
22-64 √
16 to 21 √

AGE
(You may alter age 
ranges if 
appropriate)

Under 16 √
Asian or Asian 
British People √

Black or Black 
British People √

Chinese or Chinese 
British People √

Gypsies/Travellers √
Irish People √
Mixed Race People √
People from other 
minority ethnic 
groups

√

White British People √

RACE
(You may need 
more detail here 
e.g. a specific 
ethnic group)

White European or 
Other People √

Learning Disability √
Long-Term Health 
Problem √

Mental Illness √
Physical Impairment √

DISABILITY & 
HEALTH
(You may need 
more detail here 
e.g. type of 
sensory 
impairment).

Sensory Impairment √

Bisexuals √
Gay Men √
Heterosexual √

SEXUALITY

Lesbians √
Atheist, Agnostic or 
Other belief √RELIGION & 

BELIEF
Faith Groups √
Caring 
Responsibilities √

Living in rural area √
Low Income √

OTHER
(You may add 
additional groups 
here).

Marital Status √

Please see 
paragraph 12 
above where 
impacts are 
identified



34

ISSUE GROUP

IMPACTS REASONING & 
EVIDENCE+ve -

ve 
? No

On 
Benefits/unemployed √

Poor Literacy &/or 
Numeracy √



             

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Committee 13 January 2016

Proposed  Changes to the Current Policy and  Vehicle specification 
for Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles

Report of the Licensing Officer

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 This report is to bring to the attention of the Licensing Committee the need to 
make changes to the current Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Policy 
to agree new vehicle Specifications that will better reflect current Vehicle 
Development with regards to passenger safety and passenger comfort, and 
changes to permit the use of Electric and Hybrid Powered vehicles to help with 
environmental considerations.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That: the committee meets to consider the content of this report by Licensing 
Officer Gerry Thorne and the Draft Vehicle Specification, and if in agreement 
with the changes, authorise the updating of the Councils Policy and associated 
Vehicle Specification as per his recommendation.

3.0 Summary   

3.1 Havant Borough Council has a Policy relating to the type and specification of 
Vehicles that are considered safe and suitable for the purpose of carrying 
passengers for Hire and Reward. Vehicle with up to 8 seats can be licensed for 
this purpose. The current vehicle specification has not been updated for several 
years, during which time Vehicle development has advanced considerably, not 
least in regards to the development of Electric and Hybrid powered vehicles and 
also significant changes relating to passenger safety. It is felt by the Licensing 
Officers that the current policy does not make any provision for electric vehicles 
and many Hybrid vehicles would fail to meet to the current requirement for a 
Vehicle to have a minimum engine capacity of 1.4L.

3.2 The growth in Smaller MPV’s with ostensibly 6 seats has led to a growing 
demand to Licence such vehicles. It is felt that such vehicles offer very limited 
passenger space and even less luggage carrying capacity. Often the rearmost 
passengers are effectively ‘trapped’ behind the centre row of seats and in the 



event of an accident might struggle to get out of the vehicle. Often the rearmost 
seats are temporary in nature and are only accessible to small or fitter persons 
and as such are not suitable for the elderly, disabled and larger people.

4.0 Subject of Report 

4.1 Vehicle Specification currently allows only vehicles (Petrol or Diesel ) with an 
engine capacity of 1.4L or more. Licensing Officers feel that this should be 
amended as follows:

The engine capacity must be a minimum of 1400cc (not applicable to electric 
hybrid vehicles)

(e) In the case of a battery powered engine there must be adequate 
charging capacity in the batteries to sustain the use of the vehicle for 
private hire.

With regard to the number of passenger seats that a Vehicle is authorised to 
carry, it is felt that the following amendments would be advisable in the interests 
of passenger safety and comfort:

(a) The vehicle must have at least two bodyside doors for passengers 
excluding any rear door.

(b) For vehicles with three or more rows of seats, rear seat passengers (i.e. 
all those seated behind the front row of seats) must have direct access 
to two doors.

Access from the doors to the seats must be direct, without the necessity for 
folding or moving seats or parts of the seats to gain access.

4.0 Implications 

5.1 Resources: Officer time

5.2 Legal: Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions ) act 1976

5.3 Strategy: Havant Borough Council has an agreed Licensing Policy and 
enforcement of breaches of the act is covered in this policy.

5.4 Risks: There are currently No electric or Hybrid Vehicles Licensed and it is 
thought that a clearer policy would lead to more drivers choosing a more 
environmentally friendly vehicle. There are no other foreseeable risks with this 
proposal.

With regard to passenger capacity, some existing Licensed Vehicles would fail 
to meet the new Specification and would need to be tolerated until such times 
as they are no longer licensed or are transferred and re-licensed in line with the 
new specification and Policy. It is likely that currently no more than 20 Vehicles 
would be affected by this change. 



For the Community: The community will be provided with a form of public 
transport that is both safe and meets their needs, especially those with limited 
mobility

Integrated Impact Assessment: Attached at Appendix C

6.0 Consultation . No formal consultation is required. The recommendations are 
due to changes within the Taxi Industry.  There has been ad hoc feedback from 
other Local Authority areas, customers and drivers. 

Appendices: 

A. Draft of New Vehicle Specification.
B. Copy of Current Vehicle Specification.
C Integrated Impact assessment

Agreed and signed off by Legal Services:

Contact Officer: Gerry THORNE
Job Title: LICENSING OFFICER
Telephone: 446653
E-Mail: gerry.thorne@havant.gov.uk





May 2013

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITY SERVICES GROUP

SPECIFICATION FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES

GENERAL 1. All licensed vehicles must comply in all respects with the requirements 
of any Acts and Regulations relating to motor vehicles in force during 
the currency of the licence.

All licensed vehicles must comply in all respects with any Bye-Laws and 
Licence Conditions current in the Borough of Havant.

WHEELS 2. All vehicles must have a minimum of four wheels and a wheel base of 
                                 not less than  2540 mm measured between the centres of the front and
                                 rear wheel axles.

DOORS           3. All vehicles must have a minimum of four doors, excluding any tailgate. 
a) The vehicle must have at least two bodyside doors for passengers 
excluding any rear door. 

SEATING 4. Comfortable and suitably upholstered seating must be provided for all 
                                         passengers and must provide ample leg and head room.  Seating
                                         capacity  will be calculated on the basis of a passenger unit seat width
                                         of 400 mm measured laterally across the middle of any seat and 400 
                                         mm depth of seat measured from the front edge of each seat unit.

(a)  
For vehicles with three or more rows of seats, rear seat passengers 
(i.e. all those seated behind the front row of seats) must have direct 
access to two doors without the necessity for folding or moving 
seats or parts of the seats to gain access

ENGINE SIZE    5. ‘The engine capacity must be a minimum of 1400cc (not applicable to 
electric hybrid vehicles)

(a)In the case of a battery powered engine there must be adequate 
charging capacity in the batteries to sustain the use of the vehicle for 
private hire..

LUGGAGE 6. All vehicles must have ample luggage space within the vehicle for the 
luggage of the number of passengers the vehicle is licensed to carry 
without having to fold any seat.   Estate cars or hatchbacks must be 
fitted with a guard between the luggage compartment and the 
passenger compartment. Roof racks  if used must be of a suitable type, 
securely fixed and must not be loaded beyond the vehicle 
manufacturer’s recommendations. NB you may use a roof rack to 
increase the luggage carrying capability and does not negate the need 
for the vehicle to have adequate internal luggage capacity.

STEERING 7. (a)  The steering wheel must be on the off-side of the vehicle.

(b) The steering mechanism must be so constructed or arranged that no 
overlock is possible and that the road wheels do not in any 
circumstances foul any part of the vehicle.

(c) The steering arms must be of adequate strength and as far as 
possible protected from damage by collision.

VEH APPENDIX A



May 2013

BRAKES 8. (a) All brakes must act directly on the wheels of the vehicle.

DUAL CIRCUIT (b) The pedal operated braking system must be so designed that 
notwithstanding the failure of the brakes on any pair of wheels either 
on one axle or diagonally opposite, there must still be available for 
application, brakes on the other pair sufficient to bring the vehicle to 
rest within a reasonable distance.

TYRES                     9.      (a)  All tyres must be at the correct pressure when used on the
                                               road.

(b) All tyres must be suitable for the vehicle.

(c) A minimum of 2mm of tread is required across the whole width and a 
around the entire circumference of each tyre

(d) A spare tyre conforming to (a)-(c)  above must be provided on the 
vehicle fitted to a suitable wheel; each to be the same size as the 
other wheels and tyres.

(e) Only tyres of a similar construction (e.g. steel braced radials) may be 
used on one axle.

(f) Remoulded or re-cut tyres are not acceptable.

NB: Temporary wheels, skinny wheels and run flat tyres may be    
         used  but must be replaced before any further journeys are    
         undertaken.

SUSPENSION 10. Every vehicle must be fitted with an efficient suspension system so 
designed and constructed that there is no excessive roll or pitch and 
that under normal driving circumstances, passengers receive a 
comfortable ride.

TRANSMISSION 11. Vehicles using automatic or semi-automatic transmission must be fitted 
with a device to prevent the engine starting with the transmission 
selector in a DRIVE or REVERSE position.

FUEL TANKS 12. (a)  Fuel tanks must not be placed in the engine compartment and must 
be adequately protected from damage by collision.

(b) All fuel tanks and all apparatus supplying fuel to the engine must be 
so placed or shielded that no fuel overflowing or leaking therefrom 
can fall or accumulate upon any fitting where it is capable of being 
readily ignited or can fall into any receptacle where it might 
accumulate.

(c) The filling points for all fuel tanks must be accessible only from the 
outside of the vehicle and filler caps must be so designed and 
constructed that they cannot be accidentally dislodged.

(d) In the case of an engine powered by liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) 
a device must be fitted by which the supply of fuel to the engine may 
be immediately cut off.  Its situation, together with means of 
operation and "Off" position must be clearly marked on the outside 



May 2013

of the vehicle.  Any LPG fuel tanks must be separated from the 
engine and passenger compartments.

ELECTRICAL      13.   (a)  All electrical leads, cables and connectors must be adequately 
insulated and where liable to be affected by exposure to water, fuel 
or oil must be adequately protected.

(b)  All electrical circuits must be protected by suitable fuses.

(d) Batteries must be so placed and protected that they cannot be a 
source of danger.

FIRE 14. An appliance for extinguishing fire must be carried in such a position as
EXTINGUISHERS to be readily available for use and such appliances must be of either the 

Dry Powder or BCF or similar type and of at least 1 kg capacity.  Once a 
licence plate has been issued to the vehicle, the fire extinguisher will need 
to be marked with the plate number in permanent marker pen and this will 
be checked at the mechanical test for renewal of the licence.

EXHAUST PIPE 15. The exhaust pipe must be so fixed or shielded that no inflammable 
material can fall or be thrown upon it from any other part of the vehicle 
and that it is not likely to cause a fire through proximity to any 
inflammable material on the vehicle. The outlet must be placed at the 
rear of the vehicle and in such a position as to prevent fumes entering 
the vehicle.

BODY 16. The body must be of the fixed head type.  A suitable sun roof may be 
fitted.

DRIVER'S 17. (a)  The driver's seat must be designed to accommodate the driver 
COMPARTMENT  and be adjustable for reach.

(b)  A sun visor, and adequate devices for de-misting, defrosting
and washing the windscreen must be fitted, all of which capable of 
operation by the driver.

(e) Direction indicators of an approved type must be fitted.

WINDOWS 18. (a)  Windows must be provided at the sides and at the rear of the
                                               vehicle.

(b) Passenger door windows must be capable of being opened easily by 
passengers whilst seated.

HEATING AND 19. An adequate heating and ventilation system must be fitted for the driver
VENTILATION and passengers.

GLASS 20. The windscreen and all windows must be constructed of either 
toughened or laminated safety glass to an appropriate standard.

DOOR LOCKS 21. Passengers’ and drivers’ doors must be capable of being readily opened 
from inside and outside the vehicle by one operation of the latch 
mechanism.

Double catches of an approved type must be fitted to all passenger and 
drivers’ doors.

Approved central locking systems are permitted.



May 2013

FLOOR 22. The floor of the vehicle must be suitably covered and the covers 
COVERINGS in good repair.

TAXIMETER 23. Where fitted, taximeters must  be of an approved type and tested by the 
Council or a council approved supplier .  The method of fixing and all 
wiring and drive cables must not give rise to any obstruction of the driver 
when engaged in driving the vehicle nor to any danger to the safety of 
the vehicle or passengers.

RADIO 24. All two-way radio communication equipment and all attendant wiring
APPARATUS must be fixed so as not to give rise to any obstruction of the driver when 

engaged in driving the vehicle nor to any danger to the safety of the 
vehicle or passengers. This also applies to Satellite Navigation/TV and 
hands free mobile telephone equipment.

MAINTENANCE 25. All vehicles, (including all parts, fittings, accessories etc.) must be clean 
and maintained at all times in safe working and good order.

INSURANCE 26. A current valid certificate of insurance, cover note or a copy of either, 
must at all times be carried in the vehicle.  The insurance must be valid 
for the type of use to which the vehicle is being put.

ADVERTISING 27. A front and rear sun strip, or a decal on the front doors of the vehicle, 
bearing only the name of the Operator of the vehicle and a telephone 
number is permitted without reference to the Council, but any further 
advertising must receive prior Council approval.

ACCESS 28. Normal saloon car standards of access are to be provided to meet the 
varying needs of passengers.

AGE OF 29. (i)   No vehicle shall be more than five years old at the time
VEHICLES      of initial licensing;

(ii) Any application for the renewal of a vehicle licence after the
      expiry of the previous licence will not be granted (unless the
      requirement of (i) above is met) unless:

(a) not more than three months have elapsed since the expiry of the  
previous licence and;

(b) the applicant is the previous licence holder.

MINI-BUSES, 30. Vehicles commonly known as mini-buses, MPVs or 4x4s not conforming 
to all the foregoing provisions may be licensed at the sole discretion of 
the Licensing Authority, with reference always to these provisions.

ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATION FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES LICENCE NO’s 46 AND ABOVE

These hackney carriages must comply with conditions 1 to 30 and 31.

WHEELCHAIR
ACCESSIBLE 31. A hackney carriage must be a type approved by the Vehicle 

Certification.

The applicant must be able to produce a copy of the relevant type approval 
certificate upon the request of the Council before a licence is issued. 
The vehicle must be capable of carrying a passenger seated in a 
wheelchair safely and securely. Wheelchair access must be gained by 



May 2013

ramps or a mechanical lift through an aperture no less than 780mm 
wide and 1350mm high. Any equipment necessary to safely and 
securely load and carry the wheelchair and its passenger must be 
carried and maintained in working order, on the vehicle so long as the 
vehicle is licensed. It shall be the responsibility of the vehicle’s proprietor 
to ensure that the driver can safely operate the equipment provided.

GENERAL RECOMMENDATION

FIRST AID KIT A motorist's first aid kit should be carried in all vehicles in such a 
position as to be readily available for use and should be suitably 
maintained at all times.

NOTES
The foregoing provisions give a general guide to the features which will 
be taken into account when assessing a vehicle's suitability for licensing. 
They are not exhaustive and the Licensing Authority retains the sole 
discretion to approve or reject any vehicle if it is not considered suitable 
for licensing for any reason.

Vehicles are subject to test at all times and any vehicle found not to be 
properly maintained or, if any part or fitting is not in good working order 
will be liable to have the licence suspended immediately.  Drivers of any 
unlicensed vehicle or any vehicle where a licence is suspended will be 
guilty of an offence and will be prosecuted in the Magistrates' Court.  
Proprietors and Operators of vehicles will similarly be liable to 
prosecution if they aid or abet the driving of an unlicensed vehicle.

                                       Attention is drawn to Section  50(3) of the Local Government
                                       (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 which requires  any accident to a
                                       licensed vehicle which materially affects the safety, performance or 
                                       appearance of the vehicle or the comfort or convenience of persons
                                       carried therein to be reported to the Borough Council as soon as is

                                            reasonably practicable and in any case within 72 hours. 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS FOR STRETCHED LIMOUSINES and SPECIAL VEHICLES

These conditions apply to ‘stretched limousines’ and other special vehicles that in general terms 
can be considered vintage, classic or niche vehicles.

vintage/classic = over 30 years old,
niche = fire engines, ambulances, replica vintage vehicles and other like restricted design of 
vehicle including wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAV’s) which carry two or more wheelchairs on 
a permanent basis.

The requirements set out below are in addition to those contained in the current ‘Specification for 
Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles’ and the private hire and hackney carriage 
‘Conditions of Licence’ other than where specifically stated (see below).

Omitted from these conditions are the following paragraphs of the ‘Specification for Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles’ –

Paragraph ‘3’ entitled DOORS all.
Paragraph ‘7a’ entitled STEERING in relation to steering wheel position only.
Paragraph ‘29(i)’ entitled AGE OF VEHICLES in respect of age when first licensed only. 



May 2013

Added to the aforementioned specification and conditions are the following,

1. A stretched limousine must show bone fide evidence that it was modified by a qualified 
converter and show in respect of a Ford a QVM sticker and for Cadillac a CMC sticker 
together with full details of the vehicle modifier.

2. No stretched limousine will normally be accepted for licensing if it has been lengthened by 
more than 120” or weighs more than 3500 kg. A plate affixed by the vehicle modifier must 
be on the vehicle giving weight details.

3. Tyres for all vehicles must be designed and manufactured for that class of vehicle and be 
capable of supporting the maximum loaded weight for each axle when the vehicle is driven 
at maximum speed. The full size spare wheel required must also be fitted with the same 
class of tyre.

4. An Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) certificate or equivalent for that vehicle must be 
submitted for any vehicle submitted for licensing.

5. Seat belts complying with current legislation must be fitted in respect of each passenger 
seat. No passenger may travel in the front compartment of  a stretched limousine. 

6. Vehicles licensed under these additional conditions may be required to be submitted every 
6 months for a mechanical test and check at the council’s approved centre. Only vehicles 
that pass this test may be licensed or continue to be licensed.

      7.  No licensed private hire, or hackney carriage should have the appearance of any current 
operational emergency service vehicle such as Ambulance, Police, Fire, Coastguard etc.   
No functional ‘blue lights’ are permitted.  No livery wording the same as or similar to key 
emergency service words. For example POLITE replacing POLICE or PARALETIC 
replacing PARAMEDIC.  The public must not be able to confuse the private hire or 
hackney carriage vehicle with a genuine emergency vehicle. 

      8. All novelty vehicles must be inspected by an authorised officer prior to an application for a 
private hire vehicle licence being submitted,  to verify that a licence can be granted.

ALL ENQUIRIES TO BE ADDRESSED TO:

Licensing Department
Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant
P09 2AX    

Tel:      023 9244 6657/6660
E-mail: licensing@havant.gov.uk



May 2013

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITY SERVICES GROUP

SPECIFICATION FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES

GENERAL 1. All licensed vehicles must comply in all respects with the requirements 
of any Acts and Regulations relating to motor vehicles in force during 
the currency of the licence.

All licensed vehicles must comply in all respects with any Bye-Laws and 
Licence Conditions current in the Borough of Havant.

WHEELS 2. All vehicles must have a minimum of four wheels and a wheel base of 
                                 not less than  2540 mm measured between the centres of the front and
                                 rear wheel axles.

DOORS           3. All vehicles must have a minimum of four doors, excluding any tailgate. 

SEATING 4. Comfortable and suitably upholstered seating must be provided for all 
                                         passengers and must provide ample leg and head room.  Seating
                                         capacity  will be calculated on the basis of a passenger unit seat width
                                         of 400 mm measured laterally across the middle of any seat and 400 
                                         mm depth of seat measured from the front edge of each seat unit.

Split rear seating must form a continuous seat when not folded.

ENGINE SIZE    5. Any vehicle with an engine size of less than 1400 cc will not be licensed 
for more than three passengers.

LUGGAGE 6. All vehicles must have ample luggage space within the vehicle for the 
luggage of the number of passengers the vehicle is licensed to carry 
without having to fold any seat.   Estate cars or hatchbacks must be 
fitted with a guard between the luggage compartment and the 
passenger compartment.  Roof racks if used must be of a suitable type, 
securely fixed and must not be loaded beyond the vehicle 
manufacturer’s recommendations.

STEERING 7. (a)  The steering wheel must be on the off-side of the vehicle.

(b) The steering mechanism must be so constructed or arranged that no 
overlock is possible and that the road wheels do not in any 
circumstances foul any part of the vehicle.

(c) The steering arms must be of adequate strength and as far as 
possible protected from damage by collision.

BRAKES 8. (a) All brakes must act directly on the wheels of the vehicle.

DUAL CIRCUIT (b) The pedal operated braking system must be so designed that 
notwithstanding the failure of the brakes on any pair of wheels either 
on one axle or diagonally opposite, there must still be available for 
application, brakes on the other pair sufficient to bring the vehicle to 
rest within a reasonable distance.

VEH APPENDIX B



May 2013

TYRES                     9.      (a)  All tyres must be at the correct pressure when used on the
                                               road.

(b) All tyres must be suitable for the vehicle.

(c) A minimum of 2mm of tread is required across the whole width and a 
around the entire circumference of each tyre

(d) A spare tyre conforming to (a)-(c)  above must be provided on the 
vehicle fitted to a suitable wheel; each to be the same size as the 
other wheels and tyres.

(e) Only tyres of a similar construction (e.g. steel braced radials) may be 
used on one axle.

(f) Remoulded or re-cut tyres are not acceptable.

NB: Temporary wheels, skinny wheels and run flat tyres may be    
         used  but must be replaced before any further journeys are    
         undertaken.

SUSPENSION 10. Every vehicle must be fitted with an efficient suspension system so 
designed and constructed that there is no excessive roll or pitch and 
that under normal driving circumstances, passengers receive a 
comfortable ride.

TRANSMISSION 11. Vehicles using automatic or semi-automatic transmission must be fitted 
with a device to prevent the engine starting with the transmission 
selector in a DRIVE or REVERSE position.

FUEL TANKS 12. (a)  Fuel tanks must not be placed in the engine compartment and must 
be adequately protected from damage by collision.

(b) All fuel tanks and all apparatus supplying fuel to the engine must be 
so placed or shielded that no fuel overflowing or leaking therefrom 
can fall or accumulate upon any fitting where it is capable of being 
readily ignited or can fall into any receptacle where it might 
accumulate.

(c) The filling points for all fuel tanks must be accessible only from the 
outside of the vehicle and filler caps must be so designed and 
constructed that they cannot be accidentally dislodged.

(d) In the case of an engine powered by liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) 
a device must be fitted by which the supply of fuel to the engine may 
be immediately cut off.  Its situation, together with means of 
operation and "Off" position must be clearly marked on the outside 
of the vehicle.  Any LPG fuel tanks must be separated from the 
engine and passenger compartments.

ELECTRICAL      13.   (a)  All electrical leads, cables and connectors must be adequately 
insulated and where liable to be affected by exposure to water, fuel 
or oil must be adequately protected.

(b)  All electrical circuits must be protected by suitable fuses.

(d) Batteries must be so placed and protected that they cannot be a 
source of danger.



May 2013

FIRE 14. An appliance for extinguishing fire must be carried in such a position as
EXTINGUISHERS to be readily available for use and such appliances must be of either the 

Dry Powder or BCF or similar type and of at least 1 kg capacity.  Once a 
licence plate has been issued to the vehicle, the fire extinguisher will need 
to be marked with the plate number in permanent marker pen and this will 
be checked at the mechanical test for renewal of the licence.

EXHAUST PIPE 15. The exhaust pipe must be so fixed or shielded that no inflammable 
material can fall or be thrown upon it from any other part of the vehicle 
and that it is not likely to cause a fire through proximity to any 
inflammable material on the vehicle. The outlet must be placed at the 
rear of the vehicle and in such a position as to prevent fumes entering 
the vehicle.

BODY 16. The body must be of the fixed head type.  A suitable sun roof may be 
fitted.

DRIVER'S 17. (a)  The driver's seat must be designed to accommodate the driver 
COMPARTMENT  and be adjustable for reach.

(b)  A sun visor, and adequate devices for de-misting, defrosting
and washing the windscreen must be fitted, all of which capable of 
operation by the driver.

(e) Direction indicators of an approved type must be fitted.

WINDOWS 18. (a)  Windows must be provided at the sides and at the rear of the
                                               vehicle.

(b) Passenger door windows must be capable of being opened easily by 
passengers whilst seated.

HEATING AND 19. An adequate heating and ventilation system must be fitted for the driver
VENTILATION and passengers.

GLASS 20. The windscreen and all windows must be constructed of either 
toughened or laminated safety glass to an appropriate standard.

DOOR LOCKS 21. Passengers’ and drivers’ doors must be capable of being readily opened 
from inside and outside the vehicle by one operation of the latch 
mechanism.

Double catches of an approved type must be fitted to all passenger and 
drivers’ doors.

Approved central locking systems are permitted.

FLOOR 22. The floor of the vehicle must be suitably covered and the covers 
COVERINGS in good repair.

TAXIMETER 23. Where fitted, taximeters must  be of an approved type and tested by the 
Council.  The method of fixing and all wiring and drive cables must not 
give rise to any obstruction of the driver when engaged in driving the 
vehicle nor to any danger to the safety of the vehicle or passengers.

RADIO 24. All two-way radio communication equipment and all attendant wiring
APPARATUS must be fixed so as not to give rise to any obstruction of the driver when 

engaged in driving the vehicle nor to any danger to the safety of the 
vehicle or passengers.



May 2013

MAINTENANCE 25. All vehicles, (including all parts, fittings, accessories etc.) must be clean 
and maintained at all times in safe working and good order.

INSURANCE 26. A current valid certificate of insurance, cover note or a copy of either, 
must at all times be carried in the vehicle.  The insurance must be valid 
for the type of use to which the vehicle is being put.

ADVERTISING 27. A front and rear sun strip, or a decal on the front doors of the vehicle, 
bearing only the name of the Operator of the vehicle and a telephone 
number is permitted without reference to the Council, but any further 
advertising must receive prior Council approval.

ACCESS 28. Normal saloon car standards of access are to be provided to meet the 
varying needs of passengers.

AGE OF 29. (i)   No vehicle shall be more than five years old at the time
VEHICLES      of initial licensing;

(ii) Any application for the renewal of a vehicle licence after the
      expiry of the previous licence will not be granted (unless the
      requirement of (i) above is met) unless:

(a) not more than three months have elapsed since the expiry of the  
previous licence and;

(b) the applicant is the previous licence holder.

MINI-BUSES, 30. Vehicles commonly known as mini-buses, MPVs or 4x4s not conforming 
MPVs and to all the foregoing provisions may be licensed at the sole 
discretion of the Licensing Authority, with reference always to these 
provisions.

SPECIFICATION FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES LICENCE NO’s 46 AND ABOVE

GENERAL These hackney carriages must comply with conditions 1 to 30 and 31.

WHEELCHAIR 31. A hackney carriage must be a type approved by the Vehicle 
Certification.

ACCESSIBLE The applicant must be able to produce a copy of the relevant type 
approval certificate upon the request of the Council before a licence is 
issued. The vehicle must be capable of carrying a passenger seated in 
a wheelchair safely and securely. Wheelchair access must be gained by 
ramps or a mechanical lift through an aperture no less than 780mm 
wide and 1350mm high. Any equipment necessary to safely and 
securely load and carry the wheelchair and its passenger must be 
carried and maintained in working order, on the vehicle so long as the 
vehicle is licensed. It shall be the responsibility of the vehicle’s proprietor 
to ensure that the driver can safely operate the equipment provided.

RECOMMENDATION

FIRST AID KIT A motorist's first aid kit should be carried in such a position as to be 
readily available for use and should be suitably maintained at all times.



May 2013

NOTES
The foregoing provisions give a general guide to the features which will 
be taken into account when assessing a vehicle's suitability for licensing. 
They are not exhaustive and the Licensing Authority retains the sole 
discretion to approve or reject any vehicle if it is not considered suitable 
for licensing for any reason.

Vehicles are subject to test at all times and any vehicle found not to be 
properly maintained or, if any part or fitting is not in good working order 
will be liable to have the licence suspended immediately.  Drivers of any 
unlicensed vehicle or any vehicle where a licence is suspended will be 
guilty of an offence and will be prosecuted in the Magistrates' Court.  
Proprietors and Operators of vehicles will similarly be liable to 
prosecution if they aid or abet the driving of an unlicensed vehicle.

                                       Attention is drawn to Section  50(3) of the Local Government
                                       (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 which requires  any accident to a
                                       licensed vehicle which materially affects the safety, performance or 
                                       appearance of the vehicle or the comfort or convenience of persons
                                       carried therein to be reported to the Borough Council as soon as is

                                            reasonably practicable and in any case within 72 hours. 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS FOR STRETCHED LIMOUSINES and SPECIAL VEHICLES

These conditions apply to ‘stretched limousines’ and other special vehicles that in general terms 
can be considered vintage, classic or niche vehicles.

vintage/classic = over 30 years old,
niche = fire engines, ambulances, replica vintage vehicles and other like restricted design of 
vehicle including wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAV’s) which carry two or more wheelchairs on 
a permanent basis.

The requirements set out below are in addition to those contained in the current ‘Specification for 
Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles’ and the private hire and hackney carriage 
‘Conditions of Licence’ other than where specifically stated (see below).

Omitted from these conditions are the following paragraphs of the ‘Specification for Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles’ –

Paragraph ‘3’ entitled DOORS all.
Paragraph ‘7a’ entitled STEERING in relation to steering wheel position only.
Paragraph ‘29(i)’ entitled AGE OF VEHICLES in respect of age when first licensed only. 

Added to the aforementioned specification and conditions are the following,

1. A stretched limousine must show bone fide evidence that it was modified by a qualified 
converter and show in respect of a Ford a QVM sticker and for Cadillac a CMC sticker 
together with full details of the vehicle modifier.

2. No stretched limousine will normally be accepted for licensing if it has been lengthened by 
more than 120” or weighs more than 3500 kg. A plate affixed by the vehicle modifier must 
be on the vehicle giving weight details.

3. Tyres for all vehicles must be designed and manufactured for that class of vehicle and be 
capable of supporting the maximum loaded weight for each axle when the vehicle is driven 
at maximum speed. The full size spare wheel required must also be fitted with the same 
class of tyre.



May 2013

4. An Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) certificate or equivalent for that vehicle must be 
submitted for any vehicle submitted for licensing.

5. Seat belts complying with current legislation must be fitted in respect of each passenger 
seat. No passenger may travel in the front compartment of  a stretched limousine. 

6. Vehicles licensed under these additional conditions may be required to be submitted every 
6 months for a mechanical test and check at the council’s approved centre. Only vehicles 
that pass this test may be licensed or continue to be licensed.

      7.  No licensed private hire, or hackney carriage should have the appearance of any current 
operational emergency service vehicle such as Ambulance, Police, Fire, Coastguard etc.   
No functional ‘blue lights’ are permitted.  No livery wording the same as or similar to key 
emergency service words. For example POLITE replacing POLICE or PARALETIC 
replacing PARAMEDIC.  The public must not be able to confuse the private hire or 
hackney carriage vehicle with a genuine emergency vehicle. 

      8. All novelty vehicles must be inspected by an authorised officer prior to an application for a 
private hire vehicle licence being submitted,  to verify that a licence can be granted.

ALL ENQUIRIES TO BE ADDRESSED TO:

Licensing Department
Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant
P09 2AX    

Tel:      023 9244 6657/6660
E-mail: licensing@havant.gov.uk



APPENDIX C

Customer & Equality Impact Assessment

Once you have agreed the scope of this assessment within your team, Please use this 
template inline with the CEIA Guidance notes.

Use the links to understand more about Equality issues locally and ensure you take any 
opportunity possible to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations between those with a protected characteristic and those who do not share 

it within your assessment. Click for HBC Equality Profile 2009

SECTION 1 – Policy impact details

1. Responsible 
Officer (author) Service Manager - Environmental Health

2. Is this assessment 
for EHDC or HBC or 
joint? 

HBC

3. Name and brief 
description of the 
service/policy/ 
function to be 
assessed

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Policy under 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
Sets out HBC’s policy in respect of its licensing functions 

4. Objectives of the 
service/policy to be 
assessed

Sets out proposed changes to the Policy to ensure the council 
Licensing service is capable of carrying out its functions of Licensing, 
Compliance Inspection and enforcement fairly and efficiently

5. Scope of this 
assessment

1. Minor changes to the Licensing Policy to allow clear guidance to 
licence holders and the public

6. Has Section 2 been 
attached? Yes

7. Have you 
considered any 
complaints data?

No complaints applicable

8. Have you 
undertaken any 
consultation or 
engagement?

No. Any changes agreed will be published and any licence holders 
affected will be contacted directly

http://www.havant.gov.uk/havant-10633


9. Consultation/
engagement 
outcomes 

N/A

10. From section 2 
and the above 
answers are there 
concerns that the 
policy could have a 
differential (either 
positive or negative) 
impact?

There are no concerns about the policy having a differential impact 

11. Do you need to 
seek more 
information to make 
a more informed 
decision? (Bench-
marking with other 
LA’s or focus groups 
etc)?

No

12. Reasons for any 
impact and any 
changes considered 
to the Policy/Service

 Changes to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire legislation under 
the Deregulation Act 2015 has allowed companies to carry out 
cross border sub contracting of work. This may lead to 
increased complaints and the need to inspect Operators and 
vehicles more regularly. The proposed changes are to make 
this process clearer and more transparent.

 Changes in Vehicle design and safety features make it 
desirable to update our Vehicle Specifications to match the 
available vehicle market.

 The need to encourage more environmentally friendly transport 
fits with the Councils aims and policies

13. Are there 
opportunities to 
better promote 
service/policy 
inclusion?

No 

14. Assessment 
outcomes and 
improvement plan

Any individual has the right to apply for a licence either as an Operator 
or Driver or Vehicle. The changes proposed are needed to ensure clear 
guidance to Owners, drivers Operators and their customers.

Staff are trained in equality and diversity and are aware of their 
responsibilities to apply consistency and fairness and to avoid making 
prejudgements when arriving at their decisions.  



15. Monitoring 
timetable of this 
report and the 
improvement plan

Review and when Legislation changes  

16. Which action plan 
will these actions be 
added to and who is 
responsible for that 
plan?

The Licensing Committee retain responsibility for this policy.

Please ensure that you have provided as much evidence as possible to support the 
responses you have given.

Additional Comments

Signed: G.Thorne Licensing HBC (Completing Officer who is responsible)

Signed: (Manager with overall responsibility)

Signed:  (Critical Friend, from another service)

Date: 

(please date the sign off and send to the Corporate Equality Group via 
caren.ransom@east.hants.gov.uk or caren.ransom@havant.gov.uk for quality control)

mailto:caren.ransom@east.hants.gov.uk
mailto:caren.ransom@havant.gov.uk


SECTION 2 - Screening Template

IMPACTS

ISSUE GROUP
+ve -

ve 
? No

REASONING & 
EVIDENCE

Men √GENDER
Women √

GENDER 
REASSIGNMENT

Transsexual / 
Transgender √

PREGNANCY & 
MATERNITY

Pregnancy & 
Maternity √

Over 80 √
Over 65 √
22-64 √
16 to 21 √

AGE
(You may alter age 
ranges if 
appropriate)

Under 16 √
Asian or Asian 
British People √

Black or Black 
British People √

Chinese or Chinese 
British People √

Gypsies/Travellers √
Irish People √
Mixed Race People √
People from other 
minority ethnic 
groups

√

White British People √

RACE
(You may need 
more detail here 
e.g. a specific 
ethnic group)

White European or 
Other People √

Learning Disability √
Long-Term Health 
Problem √

Mental Illness √
Physical Impairment √

DISABILITY & 
HEALTH
(You may need 
more detail here 
e.g. type of 
sensory 
impairment).

Sensory Impairment √

Bisexuals √
Gay Men √
Heterosexual √

SEXUALITY

Lesbians √
Atheist, Agnostic or 
Other belief √RELIGION & 

BELIEF
Faith Groups √

OTHER
(You may add 

Caring 
Responsibilities √

Please see 
paragraph 12 
above where 
impacts are 
identified



ISSUE GROUP

IMPACTS REASONING & 
EVIDENCE+ve -

ve 
? No

Living in rural area √
Low Income √
Marital Status √
On 
Benefits/unemployed √

additional groups 
here).

Poor Literacy &/or 
Numeracy √





HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Committee 13 January 2016

Proposed Changes to the Current Policy to Include a Restriction on 
the Licensing  for Hackney Carriages and Private Operators based 
outside of the Havant Borough Council Boundary

Report of the Licensing Officer

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 For members to consider the proposed new policy for Havant Borough Council 
to cease Licensing Private Hire Operators, whose operating base is not within 
the Borough Boundary

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the committee considers the recommendations within the report and to 
approve the new policy to refuse to licence any new Private Hire Operator 
based outside of the Borough and for the currently  licensed Private Hire 
Operators based outside of the Borough to be given 36 months written notice of 
this new policy

3.0 Summary 

3.1 That the council will not accept any new applications for Private Hire Operators 
that are based outside of the Havant Borough Boundary.

3.2 That any Private Hire Operator currently Licensed by Havant Borough Council 
but based outside the Borough boundary will be given written notice that their 
Operator Licence will only continue for a maximum period of 36 months from 
the date of the council decision

3.3 That any private Hire Operator currently licensed by Havant Borough Council 
may renew their Operators Licence but only for a maximum period of 36 Months 
from the date of the Council decision

4.0 SUBJECT OF REPORT  

4.1 Havant Borough Council currently has 57 Licensed Private Hire Operators. Of 
these only 4 are based outside of the Borough.

4.2 Historically, some Private Hire Operators Licences have been granted to 
Operators based outside of the Borough of Havant as there is nothing specific 



within the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)Act 1976  that forbids it 
Those licensed outside the Borough may have originally been based within 
Havant but have moved to locations outside of the Borough. If the operator is 
licensed by Havant Borough Council his drivers and vehicles must also be 
licensed by Havant therefore Havant is licensing taxis from outside the area. 
The current Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy currently contains no 
information or advice on the granting of Operators Licences, and it is a matter 
for the Licensing Authority to create a policy whereby only Operators based 
within the Borough can be licensed and the policy may or may not include 
grandfather rights for a given period of time.

4.3 Many other Local Authorities already have a policy in place for not licensing 
Private Hire Operators outside of their Borough. Of the Authorities involved in 
the 5 Councils project, only Hart permits licensing of Operators outside of the 
Councils area. Mendip, South Oxford and Vale of White Horse all have a policy 
of refusal. It is important that as far as possible the policies of the authorities are 
consistent, and the proposed change would bring Havant into line with the 
majority of councils involved in the project.

4.4 Licensing Private Hire Operators who are not located in Havant Borough 
presents a range of logistical problems. Enforcement has been and would 
remain impractical and costly due to the additional traveling needed to carry out 
routine inspections and deal with complaints etc. Furthermore, this distance 
makes it harder to check if unlicensed drivers and vehicles are being used. 
Problems such as parking and breaches of planning rules can also give rise to 
conflict with the council in whose area the Operator is situated.

4.5 Changes to Licensing laws under the Deregulation Act have now made it 
possible to legally carry out cross border sub contracting of work to another 
Private Hire Operator. It is therefore important to properly establish working 
boundaries to ensure that such activity is properly regulated and capable of 
being monitored and enforced.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS
.
5.1 Financial.

Refusing to grant or renew Private Hire Operators Licences based outside of 
the Borough will result in reduced income for the council in Operators fee 
income. In addition if the policy was approved there would likely be further 
reduction in income as Drivers and Vehicles used by the operator will have to 
be licensed by another Local Authority where the Operator is based. However 
the Operators licensed outside of the Borough are small companies or ‘one man 
bands’ which means the reduction of fee  income will be minimal. With 4 
Operators currently affected the estimated reduced fee income is £12500 over a 
5 year period (equivalent to £2510 pa)

5.2 Risk. 



If the council continues to licence Operators outside of the Borough there will 
continue to be difficulties in carrying out regular compliance inspections and 
investigations into complaints. The proposed policy will ensure enhanced 
enforcement and checks of Operator bases, drivers and vehicles thereby 
reducing this risk.

5.3 Human Rights and Legal implications.

Articles 1 and 6 of the Human Rights Act apply. 

Article 1 states, that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his or 
her possessions including for example, the possession of a licence.  No 
licences will be removed by this policy but renewal refused after the notice 
period has expired.

Article 6 states that in the determination of civil rights and obligations, everyone 
is entitles to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal established by law. Any applicant for an 
operators licence who is outside the area can decide to bring his application 
before the licensing committee for consideration and also has the right to 
appeal to Magistrates Court.

Section 62 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
enables the Licensing Authority to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew an 
operator’s licence on any of the following grounds.

(a) Any offence under or non compliance with, the provisions of this act
(b) Any conduct on the part of the operator which appears to the district 

council to render him unfit to hold an operators licence.
(c) Any material changes since the licence was granted in any of the 

circumstances of the operator on the basis of which the licence was 
granted, or

(d) Any other reasonable cause

5.4 Communications.

If the Policy is approved it is believed that the affected Operators will choose to 
re-licence with the authority in which their business is based. No formal 
consultation has taken place, but if approved all those affected would be written 
to and informed of the change of policy and be given 36 months notice of the 
change to give them sufficient time to arrange to meet the new policy regarding 
office location or licence with their own local council.

5.5 For the Community

The Community will be provided with a safe form of public transport that is 
subject of the correct level of scrutiny and inspection.

5.6 An integrated Impact Assessment



Attached at Appendix A

Appendix A - Integrated Impact Assessment

Agreed and signed off by Legal Services

Contact Officer: Gerry THORNE
Job Title: LICENSING OFFICER
Telephone: 446657
E-Mail: gerry.thorne@havant.gov.uk



APPENDIX A

Customer & Equality Impact Assessment

Once you have agreed the scope of this assessment within your team, Please use this 
template inline with the CEIA Guidance notes.

Use the links to understand more about Equality issues locally and ensure you take any 
opportunity possible to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations between those with a protected characteristic and those who do not share 

it within your assessment. Click for HBC Equality Profile 2009

SECTION 1 – Policy impact details

1. Responsible 
Officer (author) Service Manager - Environmental Health

2. Is this assessment 
for EHDC or HBC or 
joint? 

HBC

3. Name and brief 
description of the 
service/policy/ 
function to be 
assessed

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Policy under 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
Sets out HBC’s policy in respect of its licensing functions 

4. Objectives of the 
service/policy to be 
assessed

Sets out proposed changes to the Policy to ensure the council 
Licensing service is capable of carrying out its functions of Licensing, 
Compliance Inspection and enforcement fairly and efficiently

5. Scope of this 
assessment

1. Minor changes to the Licensing Policy to allow clear guidance to 
licence holders and the public

6. Has Section 2 been 
attached? Yes

7. Have you 
considered any 
complaints data?

No complaints applicable

8. Have you 
undertaken any 
consultation or 
engagement?

No. Any changes agreed will be published and any licence holders 
affected will be contacted directly

http://www.havant.gov.uk/havant-10633


9. Consultation/
engagement 
outcomes 

N/A

10. From section 2 
and the above 
answers are there 
concerns that the 
policy could have a 
differential (either 
positive or negative) 
impact?

There are no concerns about the policy having a differential impact 

11. Do you need to 
seek more 
information to make 
a more informed 
decision? (Bench-
marking with other 
LA’s or focus groups 
etc)?

No

12. Reasons for any 
impact and any 
changes considered 
to the Policy/Service

 Changes to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire legislation under 
the Deregulation Act 2015 has allowed companies to carry out 
cross border sub contracting of work. This may lead to 
increased complaints and the need to inspect Operators and 
vehicles more regularly. The proposed changes are to make 
this process clearer and more transparent

13. Are there 
opportunities to 
better promote 
service/policy 
inclusion?

No 

14. Assessment 
outcomes and 
improvement plan

Any individual has the right to apply for a licence either as an Operator 
or Driver or Vehicle. The changes proposed are needed to ensure clear 
lines of responsibility.

Staff are trained in equality and diversity and are aware of their 
responsibilities to apply consistency and fairness and to avoid making 
prejudgements when arriving at their decisions.  

15. Monitoring 
timetable of this 
report and the 
improvement plan

Review and when Legislation changes  



16. Which action plan 
will these actions be 
added to and who is 
responsible for that 
plan?

The Licensing Committee retain responsibility for this policy.

Please ensure that you have provided as much evidence as possible to support the 
responses you have given.

Additional Comments

Signed: G.Thorne Licensing HBC (Completing Officer who is responsible)

Signed: (Manager with overall responsibility)

Signed:  (Critical Friend, from another service)

Date: 

(please date the sign off and send to the Corporate Equality Group via 
caren.ransom@east.hants.gov.uk or caren.ransom@havant.gov.uk for quality control)

SECTION 2 - Screening Template

IMPACTS

ISSUE GROUP
+ve -

ve 
? No

REASONING & 
EVIDENCE

Men √GENDER
Women √

GENDER 
REASSIGNMENT

Transsexual / 
Transgender √

PREGNANCY & 
MATERNITY

Pregnancy & 
Maternity √

Over 80 √AGE
(You may alter age Over 65 √

Please see 
paragraph 12 
above where 
impacts are 
identified

mailto:caren.ransom@east.hants.gov.uk
mailto:caren.ransom@havant.gov.uk


ISSUE GROUP

IMPACTS REASONING & 
EVIDENCE+ve -

ve 
? No

22-64 √
16 to 21 √

ranges if 
appropriate)

Under 16 √
Asian or Asian 
British People √

Black or Black 
British People √

Chinese or Chinese 
British People √

Gypsies/Travellers √
Irish People √
Mixed Race People √
People from other 
minority ethnic 
groups

√

White British People √

RACE
(You may need 
more detail here 
e.g. a specific 
ethnic group)

White European or 
Other People √

Learning Disability √
Long-Term Health 
Problem √

Mental Illness √
Physical Impairment √

DISABILITY & 
HEALTH
(You may need 
more detail here 
e.g. type of 
sensory 
impairment).

Sensory Impairment √

Bisexuals √
Gay Men √
Heterosexual √

SEXUALITY

Lesbians √
Atheist, Agnostic or 
Other belief √RELIGION & 

BELIEF
Faith Groups √
Caring 
Responsibilities √

Living in rural area √
Low Income √
Marital Status √
On 
Benefits/unemployed √

OTHER
(You may add 
additional groups 
here).

Poor Literacy &/or 
Numeracy √






















	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Proposed  Changes to the Current Licensing Act 2003 Policy
	Appendix A

	7 Proposed Changes to the Current Policy and  Vehicle specification for Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles
	Appendix A - Draft Vehicle Specifications Nov 2015
	Appendix B - Vehicle Specifications Nov 2011
	Appendix C - Integrated Impact AssessmentVS

	8 Proposed Changes to the Current Policy to Include a Restriction on the Licensing  for Hackney Carriages and Private Operators based outside of the Havant Borough Council Boundary
	Appendix A - Integrated Impact Assessment

	10 Application for a Private Hire Operators Licence
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D


